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CHAIRMAN SPEECH AT
THE 60 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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Dear Share holders,

1 have the pleasure in welcoming you all on behalf of
the Board of Directors to the 60™ Annual General
Meeting of your Company, Cement Corporation of
India Ltd. (CCI). Your august presence in this
meeting goes on to underline your support and
interest in the Company's endeavour; and | am
thankful to everyone.

The Annual Accounts of the Company for the year
ended 31" March, 2024 together with Directors'
Report and the Auditors' Report have already been
circulated. With your permission, 1 would like to
take them as read.

Performance Highlights

CCl is the only Central Puhlic Sector Undertaking
involved in the manufacture and sale of cement in
an otherwise highly competitive industry. Your
company worked on its inherent strengths to
mitigate the challenges.

i) The Clinker production during the FY

-

2023-24 was B29980 MT as against 793985 MT for
the FY 2022-23, with an increase of 35995 MT
Though the overall Clinker production during the
FY 2023-24 was higheras compared to FY 2022-23,
the sluggish cement demand put pressure on the
production of cement and the Cement production
during the FY 2023-24 was 849670 MT as against
BAB195MT forthe FY 2022-23.

ii) The Company achieved the turnover of Rs
418.04 crores during FY 2023-24 with a Net Profit
After Tax (PAT) of Rs 95.05 crore during FY 2023-
24.

Human Resource Development

Human Resource Development of Cement
Corporation of India has played a pivotal role to
create impactful employee experience strategies to
better engage, motivate employees to maintain
healthy & transparent work culture and to achieve
higher productivity keeping in view the Mission
and Vision ofthe Corporation as well as Lo intercept
any unpredictable challenge.

11 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24



> Qualilyy Wil Mo Compitetnine

With an objective to assimilate Swachhata and
minimize pendency in the Government, Special
Campaign 3.0 was launched by various
administrative ministries. In alignment with the
goals of Garbage Free India, CCI undertook several
initiatdve with focus on cleanliness, sanitation,
health, serap disposal and space utilization.

Green Initiative and Energy Sustainability:

CCI has installed 1 MW Solar Power Plant in Rajban
Unit on RESCO Model. Further, 1 MW Solar Power
Plant at Bokajan and 6 MW Solar Power Plant at
Tandur is under finalisation stage, making a
significant step towards sustainable energy.

Hot Air Diversion System Hammessing waste heat
[rom preheater outlet to coal mill operation at CCI,
Rajban was installed. It is also under execution in
Bolkajan Unit for Raw Mill

Your company has installed PJBH at CCI- Rajban
Unit. The installation of PJBH at the CCl-Bokajan
unit is under progress. This shall reduce the
pollution of suspended particles in the atmosphere
and also collect the emitted dustin the atmosphere.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The CSR Policy was approved by the Board and the
policy is being implemented at the Corporation in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act,
2013 and guidelines issued by the Government
from time (o time.

Corporate Governance

The Company believes that ethical and transparent
business practices with all stakeholders of the
company is key to adhering to the norms of
Corporate Governance. Your company reiterates its
commitment to pursue the same. | feel elated to
inform you, that your Company is consistent in
achieving "Excellent Rating” in respect of
Corporate Governance. Independent External
Monitors (IEM) has been appointed to oversee and
resolve any grievance arising oul of any tender
floated by the company with value more than
prescribed limit. | would like to draw your
attention to the Directors' Report, where a separate

ﬂ'}; S

“J"

section under Corporate Governanceis included.
Acknowledgement

Your continued support and confidence inspires in
pursuing new endeavours for excellence and 1, on
behalfl of Board of Directors of your Company, wish
to place on record our sincere thanks to you and
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all our pursuits.

| also extend my gratitude to our esteemed
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[ also acknowledge and feel prateful for the
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Last but not the least, | would convey my
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overall development and growth of the
Corporation.
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Sd/-

(Sanjay Banga)

Chairman & Managing Director
Date 25-10-2024

Place: New Delhi
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of your
company, | am delighted to present the 60™ Annual
Report of your Company along with the audited
accounts for the year ended 31* March, 2024, the
Auditor's Report and the Report of the Comptroller
& Auditor General of India.

1. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Company's financial performance for the year
2023-24 along with previous year's figures are
given below:

Net Income from Operations

Z. DIVIDEND

Company has accumulated losses. Accordingly, no
dividend will be declared for the financial year
2023-24.

3. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND
FUTUREPROSPECTS

Your Directors wish to present Lhe details of
Business operations done during the year 2023-
24:-

2 | Other Income

34.72

3 | Total Expenses other than depreciation and interest

45187

4 | Exceptional Income/ (Expenses)

81.75

5 | PBDIT

6 Less: Finance Cost

7 | PBDT

8 | Less: Depreciation

9 | Profit/ (Loss) before Tax

10 | Less: Income Tax

3.69

11 | Add: MAT Credit Entitlement

369

12 | Met Profit after Tax

523

1.1 Corporation has earned a net profit of Rs. 95.05 crores during the year 2023-24 as against net profit of

Rs. 95.29 crores during the previous year.
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A OPERATIONS
(i) Performance of Units -

The Capacity utilization for Cement Production
(%), Clinker Production (MT), Cement Production
(MT) and Dispatch of Cement (MT) of the operating
units individually and collectively are stated as
under:-

5,
}‘; It
v 7

increased but the cement production decreased.
The cement production during the year 2023-24
from April'23 to March' 2024 was 849670 MT as
against 868195 MT oflastyear i.e. 2022-23.

(i)  Quality:

CCl manufactures various types of cements like
Portland Pozzolana Cement (PPC), Ordinary

Capacity

Utilization % 50.72 65.57 57.02 63.19 59.00 58.16 58.76 60.04
of Cement

Clinker MT |[121250( 1207300127370 |132425 581360 540830 | 829980 | 793985
Production

Cement

Production MT 118250 (129830 (141420| 156725 590000 | 581640 | 849670 | B86B195
Dispatch MT 112652 (129030 (140047 | 153615 589720 581948 | 842419 | 864593

The overall clinker production of CCI for the year
2023-24 from April' 23 to March' 2024 was 829980
MT as against 793985 MT of last year Le. 2022-23
withan increase of 35995 MT.

Due to sluggish demand, the inventory level of
clinkerwentup from 92817 MT ason31.03.2023 to
149270 MT ason 31.03.2024. The slupgish demand
also put pressure on cement production as most of
the times the grinding of cement was controlled
due to Cement Silo remaining full. Due to the above
constraint even though the production of clinker

Portland Cement (OPC) of varying grades viz 43,53

and 535 (special prade cement for manufacture of
sleepers for Indian Railways) grades, under strict
guality control with the brand name of CCl Cement.

The status of projects are mentioned below:
a) Status of Bokajan Expansion Project
A Work Order for expansion of Bokajan unit to 1200

TPD on 24.09.2010 was placed on M/s Promac
Engineering Industries Ltd. Bangalore vide Work

14 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
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Order No. 46/10/6(6)/10-MMO0/196 dated Cement Mill section.

30.09.2010 at value of Rs.142.40 crores with the iv) Upgradation of packing plant logic control
completion period of 18 months. The Project system to DCS.

languished for about 7 years. On 06.03.2019, CCl v) Auto change over panel installed for Kiln
terminated the Contract with M/s Promac auxiliary drive.

Engineering Industries Ltd.

The matter is in arbitration with Arbitral
Tribunal.

b) Status of Silchar Grinding Unit

AWork Order NoA7/10/6(7)/10-MMO /206 dated
30.09.2010 was issued to M/s Promac Engineering
Industries Ltd. Bangalore for setting up of 50 TPH
Cement Grinding Unit at Silchar ([Assam] on
Turnkey Basis at value of Rs.39.68 crores with the
completion period of 12 months.

On breach of contractual obligations, the W.0O. was
terminated by CClon 06.03.2019.

The matter is subjudice.

vi) Replaced 6.6 KV MOCB's with VCB's
{(iii) LandDataofNon-Operating Units:

Total Land area of Non-operating Units including
CCI's Pvt Land, Govt Lease Land, Pvt Lease Land &
otherisasunder:

Remarks: The data has been verified with the
available land records. However, the actual area of
the land may vary as the same is subject to up-
dation of land records and demarcation by Revenue
Department of the State Government as per the
local Land Revenue laws and outcome of court
cases.

Mandhar 656.060 | 290.010 00.0 290.010 | 39.340 | 985.410
2 Nayagaon 568.656 | 7B9.687 00.0 789.687 | 65.738 |1424.081
3 | Adilabad 772970 | 36330 |1513.560 |1549.890 | 0.00 |2322.860
4 Akaltara 212.000 | 385500 | 462.120 | B47.620 |433850 (1493470
5 Kurkunta 460.740 | 360350 0.00 360.350 |105.700 | 926.790
4] Charkhi Dadri 205.03 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 205.03
7 Bhatinda 20.240 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.120 | 30.360
Total 2895.696 |1861.877 | 1975.680 | 3837.557 |654.748 |7388.001
) Technology Upgradation B. PROFITABILITY
i) Installed fine tune GR panels for Raw Mill The company has earned a net profitof Rs. 95.05

fan main drive, Pre-Heater fans-1 &11.

ii) Installed Electronic Over Current Relays
(EOCR) in place of thermal relays.

iii) Replaced the HOT to EOT crane in the

Crores during the year 2023-24 as against the net
profit of Rs. 95.29 crores in the previous year.
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Review of CPSEs Annual Performance for FY 2023-24 by

Shri. H.D. Kumaraswamy, Hon'ble Minister (Heavy Industries),
and Shri. Kamran Rizvi, Secretary (Heavy Industries)

at Vigyan Bhawan, New Delhi:

gitieas: aifva

CPSEs Annual Performance Review Meeting
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4. CAPITALSTRUCTURE

The Corporation has not received any amount as
equity from Government of India during the
Financial year and company's share capital at the
end of the year stood at Rs. 811.41 crore; consisting
ol paid up Equity share capital of Rs. 455.98 crores
and paid up Non-cumulative redeemable
preference shares of Rs. 355.43 crores.

5. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Cement Corporation of India Limited is an egual
opportunity employer, manning around 346
regularemployees and 1173 contractual staff. CCl's
growth is attributed to the presence of diversified
employees possessing a variety of skills,
qualifications and competencies. The company has
made persistent efforts to help in nurturing human
talent, boost morale, supporl career progression,
upskill employees through training, provide an

inclusive and fair workplace and ensure health,
safety and wellbeing of all employees irrespective
ofthe cadreorlevel.

6. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:

Industrial Relations climate was conducive and
amicable during the FY 2023-24. All the applicable
labour laws were complied in line with the
government guidelines. There was no such
industrial unrest leading to zero man-days loss.
Officers and Workers Association regularly
conducted meetings so as to ensure a positive and
motivated work atmosphere resulting in improved
performance and productivity. CCl has a sound
practice of resolving issues in a structured manner
which has helped maintain an atmosphere of trust
and cooperation.

Safety Awareness:

17 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
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Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali, Independent Director,
CCI and Sh. Joseph Atul T. Barla, Government Nominee Director,
CCI inspected the Tandur Cement Factory, Reviewed the operations
and discussed the plant matters with senior officials of the plant:

s HLJ.:E
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7. HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT:

The current pace of technological advancement
and market competitiveness demands future-
proofing of our workplace. Business is
experiencing converging trends and shifting talent
expectations. In this type of landscape, the role of
HR is redefined and becomes more critical, aligning
talent strategy with overall business goals and
driving organizational success. Human Resource
Development of Cement Corporation of India has
played a pivotal role to create impactful employee
experience strategies to better engage, motivate
employees to maintain healthy & transparent work
culture and to achieve higher productivity keeping
in view the Mission and Vision of the Corporation
as well as to intercept any unpredictable challenge.
The enhancement in the performance is recognized
and the 3rd PRC is implemented at CCL

CClI has advanced tremendously in the sphere of
technolopy with the perspective of adapting to
changing job scenarios by leaving behind decade
old ways of managing and leading the workforce. In
this era of Artificial Intelligence, CClI has balanced

technology and human intervention. To ensure that
the teams remain competitive and adaptable, CCI
has prioritized continuous upskilling and reskilling
initiatives. CCI has streamlined various processes
such as Recruitment and Online Performance
Management System with the objective to ease out
the process of reaching out to candidates rapidly, as
compared to the tedious physical recruitment
process as well as to eliminate the ime consuming
manual appraisal letters.

Company's ultimate goal is to keep employees
happy, healthy and productive. Therefore, HR
professionals of CCl have been incessantly making
efforts to cultivate a jovial workplace, improve
focus & energy and boost productivity across
offices/ units of CCL. The Human Resource
Department of CCl has been organizing various
Team building activities, health awareness
sessions, medical camp, blood donation camp,
cleanliness drive (Swachhta Pakhwada), sports
activities, Yoga Day, National Unity Day,
Constitution Day, Safety weel, World Environment
Day etc.

19 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
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Rajban Cement Factory, Himachal Pradesh organized Blood donation
camp in association with the Rotary Club, Poanta Sahib in Unit premises:

A free health check-up organized by Rajban Cement Factory, Himachal Pradesh
in Chhachetti Village Panchayat, of Manal Limestone Mines of Rajban:

CCI celebrated Ambedkar Jayanti by distributing sweets and
notebooks to underprivileged children:

T % g - g
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Celebrated Kargil Vijay to honor the bravery of our army and air warriors
who fought valiantly in the Kargil War:

Pledge for Nasha Mukt Bharat Abhiyaan to combat substance abuse and
promote a healthier future for our youth:
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CCI Rajban Unit organized a BCG vaccination campaign against
TB at the unit, supported by Civil Hospital in Paonta Sahib:
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Observance of International Yoga Day, CCI organized Yoga sessions at units
and Corporate Office with the aimed at developing the habit of Yoga:
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The Tandur Cement Factory celebrated International Youth Day by
organizing awareness sessions & games aimed at empowering the youth and

to provide them with an opportunity to learn, grow, and have fun in a safe and
supportive environment:
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Observance of Swachhata Pakhwada at Corporation by conduction various
competition like essay writing Competition with a themed "Roadmap of Vikshit
Bharat”, Drawing Competition, workshop on improving personal Health etc.:

Prize distribution on Swachhata Pakhwada

251 ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24
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Special Campaign 3.0

With an objective to assimilate Swachhata and
minimize pendency in the Government, Special
Campaign 3.0 was launched by various
administrative ministries. The Special Campaign
3.0 commenced with the identification of activities

u v i

in the Preparatory Phase followed by
administering those activities during the Main
Phase of the campaign. In alipnment with the goals
of Garbage Free India, CCI undertook several
initiative under guidance of honorable CMD, Shri
Sanjay Banga with [ocus on cleanliness, sanitation,
health, scrap disposal and space utilization.

Before
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8. TRAININGAND DEVELOPMENT:

The Training and Development Policy of CCI is
reviewed and restructured constantly as per
changing business environment. In order to thrive
in this competitive business environment, Training
is provided for betler understanding of
professional requirements as well as to sensitize
employees about the socio-economic environment
in which the company operates. As part of Human
Resource Development, Cement Corporation of
India has always fostered a culture of continuous
training and development across levels and HR
professionals of CCl have shaped workplaces that
empower individuals to thrive, leading to both

personal uplifiment and organizational prosperity.
During the FY 2023-24, employees were
nominated for various online/ offline training
programmes, workshops and seminars organized
inhouse or by any external agency to hone their
skillsin their respective lunction of work.

Apart from the day to day training, CCI has initiated
a culture of organized Knowledge Sharing Sessions
wherein employees across units and offices
participated. These sessions enhance collective
knowledge and employees can gain access to
valuable information and deliver better
productivity.

Knowledge Sharing Session:
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9. OFFICIAL LANGUAGE IMPLEMENTATION:

To encaurage the use of Hindi in official work,
Cement Corporation of India has consistently
adhered to the provisions and guidelines issued by
the Department of Official language, Government of
India. Hindi Pakhwada was orpanized at Corporate
Office from September 14-28, 2023, wherein
various competitions like Hindi Dictation,
Rajbhasha Quiz and poetry competitions were
organized. Winners were awarded prizes, to
motivate the employees to increase the use ol Hindi
in their day Lo day work.

An Official Language Conference “Rajbhasha
Takniki Sangoshthi” was organized on 9th August,
2023 by CCI, Corporate Office for 50 Narakas
members under the Chairmanship of Shri Sanjay
Banga, CClL, Chairman & Managing Director to give
hands on exposure and to guide the members for
use of Hindi. CCI has also actively participated in all
the Narakas meetings.

During the financial year use of Hindi was also
promoted by the Company in Secial media
platforms such as Twitter. Company has adopted a
policy tocreate bilingualsin the e-office.

u o &l

Hindi library across all operating units including
Corporate Office was also established, consisting of
Hindi books to promote culture of reading and
learning, fostering cultural and social interaction
and access to a wide range of information to keep
oneselfupdated.

10. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Apart from the business of manufacturing cement,
the core value of CCl is to give back to the society by
providing social, environmental and economic
benefits to the community it operates. The
company has been undertaking its CSR activities in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2013. CCI
carries out CSR projects in and around the areas
where units are situated. CSR initiatives have heen
undertaken in the field of sanitation, hygiene and
promotion of healthcare facilities and skill
development

in view of the guidelines issued by DPE for the year
2023-24, CPSE were required to spend 60% of their
CSR budget on the theme of "Health & Nutrition",
preferably in aspirational districts. During the
Financial Year 2023-24, CCI has contributed in
different thematic areas including:

Installation of 1KL RO Plant each at the Community Centre of village Kando, at
secondary school in Manal village and in Primary School in CCI Rajban township
so as to ensure safe & purified drinking water to local residents and school children:
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Muglawala Kartarpur:

Distribution of Sanitary Napkins to Girl students at DAV High School in
CCI Tandur Township, Karankote:
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A Free Pediatric Medical Camp was organized in collaboration with OMNI Hospital,
Hyderabad at DAV High School, CCI Tandur Township, Karankote:

A Medical Camp was organized in Chhachetti Village Panchayat by CCI
Rajban Cement Factory, wherein free health check-up was done for local residents:

Installation of Water Geyser at Bokajan Community Health Centre, Dillai State
Dispensary, Hidipi primary Health Centre and Diphu Medical College, Diphu:
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Installation of ECG Machine at Bokajan Community Health Centre, Bokajan.

Refrigerator installation at Bokajan Community Health Centre, Dillai State
Dispensary and Hidipi primary Health Centre.

For CSR 2023-24, the company has also contributed towards Skill development
programme through Apparel Made-ups & Home Furnishing Sector

skill Council (AMHSSC).
11. WELFARE OF WOMEN:

The Company has invariably tried to create a
culture of equitability which has encouraged
women lo proactively participate in all domains in
the organization. This culture has brought aboutan
internal shift in their thinking so their actions can
be different and better, which has helped them and
the organization to grow. Women employees are
given all statutory and other benefits across
Uinits/OHfices of the Corporation.

In order to protect & safeguard the interests of
women employees and build a safe workplace, a
committee has been established in conformity with
Prevention of Sexual Harassment (PoSH) Act. The
committee addresses any issue related to sexual
harassment policy, reviews the company sexual
harassment policy time to time and has sensitised
the employees with the provisions of the Act.

During the FY 2023-24, the committee has not
received any complaint under Sexual Harassment
of Woman at Workplace.

The International Women's Day 2024 was
celebrated with active participation from all
women employees. On the occasion of
International Women's Day, a session on PoSH Act
was conducted as well as a lecture on the
"Constitution and Legal provisions & Rights of
Women in India” was delivered. The Ladies Club,
formed acrossall the units of CCI, organizes various
social and recreation activities for women and
addresses any women related issue. Corporation
provides infrastructural and other financial
assistance from time to time to Ladies Club to
conduct Vocational and Computer literacy
programmes Lo promote women as well as to take
care of Mother & Child Health care.

As a part of the observance of the Sexual Harassment at Workplace, a Session
was organized about the PoSH Act, 2013 to equip. everyone with the knowledge
& tools to foster a respectful environment:

& Importan

a1 Workplace
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International Women's Day was celebrated with fervor & renewed commitment
at Corporate Office. An Awareness Session on the POSH Act Was held during the
day& inspiring stories were shared by Ms.Bhayana, POSH Expert:

In celebration of Women's Equality Day in the Month of August, organized
special events to honor the achievements of women and promote gender equality:

12, GRIEVANCE REDRESSALMECHANISM

In adherence to the guidelines issued by
Government of India, Cement Corporation of India
has constituted an effective Grievance Redressal
mechanism for its employees in Corporate office
and Units so as to ensure timely resolution of

grievances.

Employees can raise grievances at any point of time
related to wage matters, working conditions, leave,

work assignments and wellare amenities etc.
Depending on the nature of grievance, the
committee ensures that all grievances are
addressed and resolved informally in good thought.
CCl's Grievance system is extensive, simplified and
flexible which has manifested effectiveness in
promoting pleasant relationships between
employees and management leading to better
productivity.
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13. REMUNERATION POLICY

In CCl, pay and other benefits for executives are
based on the Presidential Directives issued by the
Ministry of Heavy Industries and Department of
Public Enterprises,

As per guidelines issued by DPE vide OM No. W-
02/0028/2017-DPE (WC)-GL-XI11/17 dated
03.08.2017, OM No W-02/0028/2017-DPE(WC)-
GL-XIV/17 dated 04.08.2017 and OM No. W-
02/0028/2017-DPE[(WC)-GL-XVI/17 dated
(7.09.2017 on Pay Revision of Board Level and
below Board Level Executives and Non-Unionised
Supervisors of CPSEs w.ef 01.01.2017, MHI has
issued presidential directives on 01.09.2023 to

implement pay revision notionally effective from
01.01.2017 and actually with effect from
01.04.2023. The said order (Presidential
Directives) has been implemented.

14, CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information pertaining to conservation of
energy, technology absorption, Foreign exchange
Earnings and outgo as required under Section 134
(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 is
furnished in Annexure and is attached to this
report.

Green Initiative and Energy saving projects taken up by Corporation

is provided below:

e Installed 1 MW Solar Power Plant in Rajban Unit on RESCO Model and also
under finalisation stage in Bokajan and Tandur unit, making a significant step

towards sustainable energy :
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® Fly Ash handling system installed in Tandur unit which will resulting into
rise in addition of Fly Ash in production cement by uses a carbon-negative
process of manufacturing:

e Foundation Stone Laying of Coal shade space frame structure at Tandur
unit by Sh. Sanjay Banga, CMD, a significant milestone in our journey towards
modernization and effective utilization of Coal:
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® Sh. Sanjay Banga, CMD, unveils Hot Air Diversion System Harnessing waste
heat from preheater outlet to coal mill operation at CCl, Rajban. It is also under
execution in Bokajan Unit for Raw Mill:
v,

L)

.

' 1
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® Sh. Sanjay Banga, CMD, inaugurated a cutting-edge Pulse Jet Bag House
(PJBH) at CCI, Rajban to combat air pollution:

CCi
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15. STATEMENT CONCERNING
DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF
RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY

The risk management system is an integrated and
aligned system with the corporate and operational
objectives. Risk management is undertaken as part
of normal business practice and not as a separate
task at set time.

16. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND
IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
INITIATIVES

Your Company has always discharged its social
responsibility as a part of its C5R philosophy that
business and society can become partners for
development. In line with its Corporate Social
Responsibility, your company has created basket of
activities and taken up various initiatives.

17. ACTIVITIES AND ACHIEVEMENTS OF
THE VIGILANCE DEPARTMENT.

1. The CVC, as the apex integrity organization
in India, adopts different initiatives to strive
towards ensuring integrity in Public
Administration. This year, as per CVC guidelines in
prelude to Vigilance Awareness Week 2023, a three
menths campaign (from 16™ Aupust 2023 till 15"
November 2023) was organized in CCL

During the campaign various training programs
were conducted on Preventive Vigilance measures,
Capacity building, 10s/P0s, Ethics and Governance,
Systems and Procedures of the organization, Cyber
hygiene and Security, procurement etc. All the
officers from CO & Units were trained during these
trainings and were encouraged to train other
employees to sensitize about the need for
transparency and Integrity in public Governance.

2. As per the CVC guidelines, three menth
campaign was organized in CCl with the following
Preventive Vigilance measures as focus areas:

S

*’ f,.:_‘ "@’

{a) Awareness building about Public Interest
Disclosure and Protection of Informers
{PIDPI) Resolution.

(b] Capacity Building programs.

(€) [dentification and implementation of
Systemic Improvement measures.

(] Leveraging of I'T for complaint disposal.

(e] Updation of Circulars / Guidelines /

Manuals.

(f) Disposal of complaints received before
30.06.23.

3. Vigilance Awareness Week was observed

from 30th October to 5th November 2023 with the
following theme:

“ycE B faey o9, o @ yia wefda 2

"Say no to corruption; commit to the Nation™

4, Different Competitions like Essay writing,
Poster making and Debate Competitions were
organized inall the three Units and Corporate office
during the week to create awareness among the
masses. Workshops were organized in nearby
Villages, Institutes and Schools of Rajban, Bokajan
and Tandur Plant.

5. Regular preventive vigilance activities
were perfermed in CCl such as identification of
areas prone to corruption, identification of
sensitive posts & carrying periodic rotation of
officers/staff in sensitive posls, surprise
inspections, scrutiny of Immovable Property
Returns and preparation of Agreed & 0DI lists etc.

B. As per the CVC guidelines our Organization
used to send Quarterly Performance Reports, CTE
Reports and Quarterly Progress Reports to Central
Vigilance Commission (CVC) periodically.
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Sh. Nizamuddin, (CVO), visited Tandur Unit and inspected the limestone
mines & factory area to discuss the operations and important plant matters
with senior officials:

CVO graced the Vigilance Awareness Week closing ceremony at Corporate
Office in Presence of Sh. Sanjay Banga, CMD, and Sh. P.K. Chand, Dir. (F),
were prizes awarded to the winners of various competitive events organized:
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18. E-PROCUREMENT /INTEGRITY PACT

The e-procurement facility has been in place in the
organization. M/s. NIC (National Informatics
Center), New Delhi is the service provider for e-
procurement portal.

Tenders above Rs. 50000.0 (Fifty Thousand) are
being invited through e-tender, through NIC/GeM
portal.

The Integrity Pact has been implemented. The IEM
has been appointed to oversee Lhe implementation
of Integrity Pact, for all tenders above Bs. 10.0 {Ten)
Lakhs.

19. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has adequate internal financial
controls system for ensuring arderly and efficient
conduct of its business including adherence to the
Company's policies, safeguarding of its assets and
prevention of frauds, accurate and prompt financial
reporting, for compliances and improve the
effectiveness of risk management towards pood
corporate governance. The company has the
following internal audit system mainly :-

. Internal Audit by Independent Chartered
Aceountant firms

Outside Internal auditors are appointed on the
basis of Open Tender/ Empanelment after due
recommendation by Audit Committee and
approval from Board of Directors of the company.
The reports containing significant audit findings
are periodically submitted to management and
Audit Committee of the company. Based on report
of Internal Auditor, corrective action in respective
areas are undertaken and thereby strengthen the
control.

The company has adequate internal control
measures inthe form of various codes, manuals and
procedures issued by the management covering all
important activities i.e. Ma rkeling Manual,
Purchase and Works manual, Malerial, Stores,
Accounts and Personal Manual etc. The marketing
manual has been updated and management has
taken steps to update all other manuals time to time

8

for better checkand control.

20. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES
ORINVESTMENTS

No govt loans, guarantees or investments are made
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
duringtheyear2023-24.

21 EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON
QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE
REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE
AUDITORS AND THE PRACTICING COMPANY
SECRETARY IN THEIR REPORTS:

Management's reply to the Statutory Audit Report
and Secretarial Audit Report are part of Directors'
Report.

22, PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR
ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

There was no contract or arrangements made with
related parties as defined under Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

23. COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO
DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR
DUTIES:

CClis a CPSE where policy relating to appointment,
remuneration and allowances payable to Directors
is determined by the Government of India.

24, ANNUALRETURN

The Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of
Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is
placed on the website of the company. The URL for
the Annual Return is
https:/ fwww.cciltd.in/page.php?id=29

25. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS
CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW

The company has conducted five (5) Board
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Meetings i.e. on 28.06.2023, 31.08.2023,
27.09.2023,09.01.2024 and 17.01.2024 during the
financial year 2023-24.

26, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS REPORT

Management Discussion and Analysis Reporti is
attached with this report and forms part of Annual
Reportofthe Company.

27. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY
STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board
hereby submit its responsibility Statement:—

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts,
Lhe applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures;

(b) the directers had selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for
that period;

() The directors had taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual
accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had laid down internal
financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal financial controls are
adequate and were operating effectively. Internal
linancial control means the policies and
procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business
including adherence to Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the
timely preparation of reliable financial
information.

(n The directors had devised proper systems
to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

28.  SUHBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint
venture or Associate Company.

29. DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed
any deposits during the year 2023-24

30. DIRECTORS

The following directors were appointed/ ceased
during the year 2023-24:

- Ms. Mukta Shekhar, Joint Secretary,
Ministry of Heavy Industry joined the Board as part
time official Director (Govt. Nominee] w.e.f.
12.04.2023.

Dr. Renuka Mishra, ceased Lo be part lime
official Director {Govt. Nominee) from the Board of
the Company w.e.l. 12.04.2023. The company
places on record, its appreciation for her guidance
and contribution during her association with the
Company.

31. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT
DIRECTORS

Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali and Dr. Manju
Baghel, Non-official Independent Directors of CCI
have piven their respective Declaration of
Independence under the provisions of Section 149
{(7) afthe Companies Act, 2013.

32 DIGITALIZATION, E-PRCOUREMENT,
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BILL TRACKING, ERP, ONLINE SALES MODULE,
ONLINE PROVIDENT FUND MODULE, ONLINE
PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL PORTAL, CYBER
SECURITY AUDIT ETC.

Digitalization at CCL:

. CCl has taken up several initiatives to
enhance transparency and improve efficiency such
as e-Procurement of Works, Goods and Services, e-
Office, Video Conferencing Solution, to name a few.

The latest updates and information made
by the company can be accessed at Company's
website: https://www.cciltd.in which includes the
Company Profile/ Organizational History of CCI,
Vision & Mission, Annual Reports, latest Tenders,
Photo Gallery, Plants/CCl Offices, HRM fHRD etc.

E-Procurement Portal:

The CCI is using the GeM (Government e-Market
Place) portal for procurement of Goods, Services
and Works. However, GePNIC CPP e-procurement
portal of Gove of India is used in case of non-
availability in GeM portal. The e-procurement
portal GePNIC is a secure and transparent

H
L

procurement system.
E-mail:

The CCI has migrated mail servers to NIC [Govt. of
India) for better security of electronic mail. Now
the email.gov.in portal is being used for accessing
emails, which is having the dual authentication
facility.

Digitalization of Records:

The exercise for digitalization of records has been
initiated for better record management of official
documents.

Bill Tracking System for Vendor:

CCI has provided a link at CCI's official website for
“"Online Bill Tracking System” Lo help the Vendors.

ERP:

The project for moving from Tally ERP 9 o SAP
Business One ERP system has been initiated for
better management of information systems and
data security. The systemisin trial stage.

The “Go live” event of SAPB1 software launched by Sh. Sanjay Banga, CMD:
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Online Sales Module:

The online sale module in CCl website is available
wherein the customer can place the request for
purchase of cement directly to the plants.

Online Provident Fund Module:

CCI introduced PF online Module in Intranet
Website for facilitating the employee.

Online Performance Appraisal Portal:

The Online Performance Appraisal system is being
used for transparency and streamlining,

Cyber Security Audik:

The cyber security audit is also initiated for
mitigating IT security vulnerability in online
portals. The Centralized Firewall has heen installed
at CCl-Tandur Unit, for Parameter level security.

CCI Ltd organized a session at Corporate Office on 'Cyber Hygiene & Security'
imparted by Sh. PK Gupta, Sr. D(IT) & HOD, MHI, NIC, for increasing awareness
among employees by demonstrating various IT tools to detect & prevent cyber frauds:

33. IMPLEMENTATION OF RIGHT TO
INFORMATION ACT, 2005

Your Company has always endeavored in
implementation of Right to Information [(RT1) Act,
2005 in letter and spirit. The Company has
designated Public Information Officers (PIO) and
Appellate Authorities and Transparency Officer
under Section 5 and Section 19(1) of the RTI Act.
The provisions under the Act are being complied
with by all the Plants and Units of the Company.

An exclusive RTI Corner has been developed with
link being available on website of the Company.
Details of Authorities, PIO, First Appellate

Authority & Transparency Officer have also been
made available on the website of the Company.

34. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND
OUTGO:

From time Lo time we are receiving expaort
enquiries from different parties. Due to locational
disadvantage for our plants, which are for away
from sea ports, out infand freight from plants to the
nearest sea ports works out to be on higher side.
Due to this reason our FOB prices do not work out
competitive. Close monitoring is being done on
export front, Lo avail the opportunity, as and when
arises. The entire production of cement is being
sold in the domestic market.
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35. AUDITORS:
STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. PVRN & Co., Chartered Accountant Delhi were
appointed as Principal Statutery Auditors and
Branch Auditor for Rajban unit for the year 2023-
24 and M/s. K P Sarda & Co. and M/s. Karvy & Co,,
were appointed as Branch Auditors. The report of
the statutory auditors and reply thereto, and
comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of
India are annexed to this report.

COST AUDITORS

M/s. HMVN & Associates, Cost Accountants, were
appointed as Lead Cost Auditor of the Corporation
and also Cost Auditor of Rajban, M/s.
Bandyopadhyaya Bhaumik & Co., Cost Accountant
for Bokajan & M/s. PKR & Associates LLP, Cost
Accountants for Tandur Unit for the year 2023-24.

SECRETARIAL AUDITCORS

In terms of the provisien of Section 204 of the Act
read with the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, the Board has appointed M/s. Amit Agrawal
& Associates, Company Secretaries, New Delhi as
Secretarial Auditor for conducting Secretarial
Audit of your Company for the financial year ended
31°* March, 2024. The report of the Secretarial
Auditors is attached as Annexure. In respect of the
remarks made by the Secrelarial Auditor in their
report, your Directors have clarified as under: (i)
Total six meetings of Audit Committee were held
during 2023-24, however, the same is noted for
compliance (ii) As suggested follow up is being
taken up with Banks by Finance DepttL

36. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF
AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL
MECHANISM

The Audit Committee of the company consists of
the [ollowing Directors:

a. Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali,
Independent Director as Chairman.
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h. Dr. Manju Baghel, Independent Director, as
Member
C. Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla, Director (GovL

Nominee) as Member

The Company has Whistle Blower Policy as
approved by Board of Directors. The Company has
also provided adequate safeguards against
victimization of employees and Directors who
express their concerns. The Company has also
provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee, who are competent authority under
the Whistle Blower Policy of the company on
reporting issues concerning the interests of
employees and the Company. The Whistle Blower
Policy is hosted on the official website of the
Company www.cciltd.in

37. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Board acknowledges the support and guidance
your Corporation received from Ministry of Heavy
Industries, Govt. of India and alse the support and
cooperation of the Ministry of Railways, PESH,
Financial Institutions, Bankers and other Central
and State Government Departments. We extend
our gratitude to our esteemed customers both in
Govt. and private sector for their continued
overwhelming support to the products of CCL

The Directors are thankful to M/s. PVRN & Co.,,
Chartered Accountants, Comptroller & Auditor
General of India and Principal Director of Audit,
Industry and Corporate Affairs. The Directors wish
to place on record their deep appreciation for the
dedication of employees of the Corporation.

FORAND ONBEHALF OF THEBOARD

Sd/-

(Sanjay Banga)
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN No: 09353339

Date: 30.09.2024
Place: New Delhi
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Particulars under following heads as required
under Rule 8{3) of Companies {Accounts) Rules
2014,

A CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(n The steps taken or impact on
conservation ofenergy:

® Replaced inefficient motors / re-wounded
motors hy energy efficient motors such as
motors of Preheater Fans, Cooler Fans to
reduce the energy losses.

[ Replaced Power Transformers with OLTC &
AVR and Distribution Transformers with
efficient transformers

® Replaced Conventional bulbs / tubes with
LEDlampsin colony & plant

[ Installation of Energy Efficient Ceiling Fans
in place of conventional [ans

o Reduction in the idle operation of
equipment by providing the interlock &
monitoring

o Installation of APFC panels to improve the
power factor

] The conversion of connection of the LT
motors [rom Delta to Star

a Installation of efficient control panels for
ESP of Cement Mill & Raw Mill

® Proposal finalised for installation of Coal

Shed for smooth operation of Kiln during
rainy season and avoiding the excess coal
consumption

] The diversion of waste hot gasses from
preheater fan outlet to coal mill inlet for
drying of coal. The coal consumption got
reduced.

(II}) The steps taken by the company for
utilizing alternate sources of energy:

@ The 1 MWp Solar Power Plant under RESCO
MODEL has been commissioned at CCl-
Rajban unit.

L The 1 MWp Selar Power Plant under RESCO
MODEL is under tendering stage at CCl-
Bokajan and 6 MW Solar Power Plant is
under finalisationat CCI-Tandur.

{Ilf) The Capital investment on energy
conservation equipment's.

The CCI has invested ¥344 Lakhs for taking up the
various energy conservation measures by way of
improvement in efficiency and reducing losses.

B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

(i) The efforts made towards technology
ahsorption;-

a) Installed Energy Efficient motors for Cement
Mills, Kiln Belt Bucket elevator ete,

b) Installed switching breakers of SFG type in
place of MOCE for 132 Voltage level

c) Installed new Vacuum Cireuit Breaker in place
of Oil Circuit Breaker

d) Installed AVR for voltage optimisation and
synchronization with RTCC panels for 7 MVA
transformers

&) The pulse jet bag house was installed in place
of ESP. This has reduced the wastage ol
material in alr as well as reduced the pollution
level.

{ii) The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction, product
developmentorimpart substitution

[a) The installation of Dry fly ash feeding system
for increasing the addition of the fly ash lor
utilization of the waste material of thermal
power plant and reduce the costofproduction

(b) The utilisation of technology such as
installation of VCB, AVR elc improved the
plant operation in turn enhancing
productivity.

fiii) In case of imported technology (imported
during the last three years reckoned from the
beginning of the financial year): NIL

[a) The details oftechnology imported: NA

() Theyearof import: NA

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed:
NA

(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption
has not taken place, and the reasons thereof;
and: NA

fiv) The expenditure incurred on Research and
Development: NA
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Wrapping up a successful XXth North East Metalliferous Mines Safety Week,
2023-24 at Radisson Blu Hotel Guwahati,under DGMS,Guwahati Region. Honored
to have Sh.Sanjay Banga,CMD, Sh.P.K Chand,Dir(F) & Chief Guest Sh.S.S Prasad,
DDG,DGMS with us:

W‘EILDayFuncﬂ o, |®
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Annexure A

CSR ACTIVITIES

1 A brief outline of the company's CSR policy,
including overview ol projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the
web-link to the CSR policy:

CCl's CSR & Sustainability Policy is envisaped as "A
commitment to meet its social oblipations by
playing an active role to improve the quality of life
ol the communities and stakeholders on a
sustainable basis, preferably in the project areas
where itis operating”.

CCI integrates and align its CSR & Sustainability
policies and activities with its goals, plans and
strategies keeping in view the suggested activities
as per schedule Vil ol the Companies Act, 2013 and
Guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises, Governmenl of India. The CSR &
Sustainability activities will be imbibed by the
employees at all levels and it should permeate into
all activities, processes, operations and
transactions of CCL.

{i] NetWorth-221.61 Crore
(ii) Turnover- 417.05 Crore
(iii) Net Profit- 95.05 Crore

(iv) Criteria that triggered CSR applicability
Net Profit Exceeding 5 Crores.

{a) (i) Whether CSR Committee has been
constituted- YES

(ii) Number of Directors composing CSR
Committee- 03

(iii}) Number of meetings of CSR Committee
held during the year- 02

1: 07392367 Dr. Ravindra Independent Director | 02
Shivshankar Arali

2. 09391340 Dr. Manju Baghel Independent Director | 02

3, 10122179 Shri Joseph Atul . | Director (Govt. 02
Barla Nominee)

(b) (i) Whether the company hasawebsite- YES

(ii] If Yes, Provide web-link-
http:/ /cciltd.in/pagaphp?id=194

(iii) Whether following has been disclosed on
the website of the company in pursuance of

Rule 9 of Companies (CSR Policy) Rules,
2014

+ Composition ol CSR Committee- YES
. CSRPolicy-YES
- CSRprojects approved by the Board- YES
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(<) (i)

(i)

Whether Impact assessment of CSR
projects is carried out in pursuance of sub-
rule (3) of Rule 8 of Companies (CSR Policy)
Rules, 2014, ifapplicable- NIL

Il Yes, whether the same has been disclosed
inthe Board Report- NA

g
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(iii) Provideweb-link, ifany- NA

(d) (i) Whether any amount is available for set off

(i)

in pursuance of sub-rule (3] of Rule 7 of
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014- NIL

lf yes, provide details:

2020-21 =

2021-22 -

- a—

La |0 e

2022-23 --

Total -

4. (@)

Whether the company has completed the
period of three financial years since its
incorporation - YES

years completed since incorporation- NA

(c) Net Profit & other details for the preceding

financial years:
(b) Ifno,then provide the number of financial
s Profit before tax 13.16 40.20 95.29

2. Net Prefit computed u/s 13.16 40.20 13.55
198

3. Total amount adjusted ] ] ]
as per rule 2(1)(h) of the
CSR Policy Rules 2014

4. Total Net Profit for 13.16 40.20 13.55
section 135 (2 -3)

(d)

5.(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Average Net Profit of the company as per
section 135 (5)-Rs. 2230 Lakhs

2% of Average net profit of the company as
persection 135 (5] - Rs. 44.60 Lakhs

Surplus arising out of the CSR projects/
programs or activities of the previous
financial year, ifany - NIL

Amount required to be set off for the
financial year, ifany —4.39 Lakhs

Total CSR obligation for the financial year
{5a+5b-5¢c) - Rs.40.21 Lakhs

6. (a)

(b)

(i)

Whether CSR amount for the financial year
has been spent-YES

[fyes, CSR amount has been spent against:

Ongoing projects-YES

Other than ongoing projects- NA

Both (Ongoing and other than ongoing
projects)- NA

Details of CSR amount spent against
ongoing projects for the financial year:

Number of Ongoing Projects for the
financial year
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(ii}) Details of CSR amount spent against other
than ongoing projects for the financial year:
NIL

Number of Other than Ongoing Projects for
the financial year

Total
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(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(2)

(b)

Amount spent in Administrative
Overheads- NIL

Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if
applicable- NIL

Total Amount Spent for the financial year -
Rs.42,97,595

Amount unspent/ (excess) spent for the
Financial year [5(d)-6(e)] unspent for
Ongoing projects) - Rs. 2,76,595

Amount eligible for transfer to Unspent

(h)

(2)

RS
“'}a‘ 4

CSR Account for the Financial year as per
Section 135 (6) (before adjustments) - NIL

Amount to be transferred to Fund specified
in Schedule VII for the Financial Year (if
total unspent for the Financial Year is
greater than unspent for Ongoing projects)
-NIL

Details of transfer of Unspent CSR amount
for the financial year:

Transfer to Unspent CSR account as per
Section 135(6)

Transfer ta Fund specified in Schedule VIl as per second proviso to Section
135(5) for the Financial Year:

Specify the reason(s) if the company has
failed to spend two percent of the average
net profitas persection 135(5): NA

Whether any unspent amount of preceding

(a)

three financial years has been spent in the
financial year: NO

Details of CSR amount spent in the financial
year pertaining to three preceding financial
year(s):

2020-21 = - =

2021-22 = = —

2022-23 s o —
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the

preceding financial year(s):

Number of Ongoing Projects: NA

(c) (i) Whether any new CSR project has been
undertaken in the financial year from the
Unspent amount pertaining to preceding
three financial years: NO

(ii) If yes, nature of the new CSR Project(s)
is/are:

+ Ongoing project(s] - NA
« Other than ongoing project(s)-NA

- Both [Ongoing and other than ongoing

(iii)

projects)- NA

Details of amount spent against new
ongoing CSR projectin the financial year:

Number of Ongoing Projects: NA

Total
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(iv) Details of amount spent against new other than ongoing projects in the financial year
Number of Other than Ongoing Projects: NA

10. Whether any capilal assets have been created or acquired through CSR spent in
the financial year: NO

If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired: NA

CSR Name | Registered
Registration Adidress
Number, if
applicable
NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL | NIL
Total
Sd/- Sdi-
(Ravindra Shiv shankar Arali) (Sanjay Banga)
Chairman (CSR Committee) Chairman & Managing Director
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Management's replies to the observations stipulated in the Audit Report on Annual
Accounts for the financial year 2023-24 dated 21-08-2024 are given below:

A

Execution of title and lease deeds of land of certain units in favor
of company continues to be pending and land details are subject
to reconciliation. Further, the DDA had suo moto transferred the
land measuring 14.20 acres to SDMC on 11.04.2017, the cost of
which is now transferred to “Recoverable from outside parties”.
Moreover, the physical possession of land measuring 6.74 acres,
given to railways for constructing siding is not yet handed over to
the company. Further, MCD vide letter dated 22,04.2024 has
communicated handing over of 9 acres of MCD land situated at
Firozpur Kalan ta CCl in lieu of 14.20 acres of land, possession of
which is still pending.

The position has been
adequately explained in
the relevant point no, 04
in Note no. 34, which is
forming part of the
Annual Accounts.

No provision is made in respect of the liability arising out of
acquisition and use of government land outside CCl's Adilabad
Township as road from pump house to national highway 7, the
alienation order of which is awaited.

The position has been
adeguately explained in
the relevant point no. 06
in Note no. 34, which is
forming part of the
Annual Accounts.

in relation to Yerraguntla unit sold in 1998, has not been
considered due to pending reconciliation.

The position has been '
adequately explained in

the relevant point no. 12

in Note no. 34, which is

forming part of the

Annual Accounts.

The balance of certain Trade Receivables, Loans and advances,
Trade Payables, Deposits to and from parties and Other Liabilities
are subject to confirmation and reconciliation. The financial
impact, if any arising out of non-reconciliation is unascertainable.

The position has been
adequately explained in
the relevant point no. 35
in Note no. 34, which is
forming part of the
Annual Accounts.

The company has seven production units and a grinding unit at
Delhi, where operations were discontinued between the years
1996 to 1999 and a grinding unit at Bhatinda (Punjab) which did
not commence production, As per view of the Management, no
provision for impairment of assets, under A5-28 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, is required because
recoverable value expected is normally more than the book value
of the Assets,

The position has been
adequately explained in
the relevant point no. 11
in Note no. 34, which is
forming part of the
Annual Accounts.
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The company had issued 3554325 Non-cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares of 1,000/ - each for a value of $355.43 crores
to Govt. of India on 22nd March 2007 for 7 [seven) years. As per
terms of issue, above preference shares were to be redeemed
before 22nd March 2014, which is not in consonance with the
terms of the issue. Management informed that further action for
re- issue of preference share has been sought from Ministry as per
Cabinet / BIFR direction.

The position has been
adequately explained in
the relevant point no. 13
in Note no. 34, which is
forming part of the
Annual Accounts.

Out of the Total Inventory of 18,158.40 Lakh the inventory of
non-operating units of T 2,258.82 Lakh (around 12.44 % of Total
Inventory) had been carried forward in the books at same amounts
from several past years. Having regard to nature of inventory
items involved and comments of branch auditors on inventory in
their respective audit reports, there may be considerable
depletion in value of inventory the effect of which has not been
quantified ar provided for by the management in the financial
statements,

In Note no. 34 point no.
11 of the Annual
Accounts of corporation,
it has beementioned

that the market value of
the assets in respect of
non-gperating units as
per BIFR sanctioned
scheme is higher than
book wvalue of assets.

Further, the  non-
operating units  are
under

disinvestment/5ale.

a} In Adilabad, Akaltara, Bhatinda Grinding Unit, Charkhi Dadri,
Kurkunta, Mandhar and Nayagoan units, No fixed assets
verification report was made available to us by the
management thereby questioning the actual presence of such
assets as reported in financial statements, the effect of which
is not possible to quantify.

b} In Akaltara and Charkhi Dadri, provision on inventory was
provided prior to our audit report period. However, In
Akaltara, Charkhi Dadri, Kurkunta and Mandhar Units, the
management failed to provide the physical verification report
and basis for provision, which raises doubt about tk actual
existence of inventory.

c) InTandur unit, with respect to inventory of stores and spares,
wherein, the auditor is unable to verify the existence and
condition as the inventory was not adeguately labeled or
tagged. Some spares parts were scattered in an open ground
which lead to rusting & Damage of spare parts. Auditor is
unable to comment on whether there is impairment or
obsolescence in the value of said inventory as at 31st March
2024,

The position has been
adequately explained in
the relevant point no. 09
and 17 in Note no. 34,
which is forming part of
the Annual Accounts.

Further w.r.t  Tandur
Unit, the qualification
will be taken care in the
subsequent year.

56 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Global economy showed signs of stabilization
during FY 23-24 rising on the reduced risk of global
recession and support of favorable factors such as
increased household consumptions and strong
emerging economies,

India remained resilient throughout FY 23-24
despite challenging plobal environment such as
Russia Ukraine and Israel Gaza wars. It also
emerged at the fifth largest global economy with
estimated GDP of 3.7 trillion USD. According to NSO
(National Statistics Office) India's real GDP is likely
togrowat 7.6% lor FY 23-24.

The economic growth of India is fueled by
industrial sector specially manufacturing.
Manufacturing growth is helped by ease in global
commedity prices of energy, metal and food
categories Construction sector also benefited from
higher capital povernment expenditure (Capex)
and increased demand of housing.

As per Union Budget 23-24, povernment proposed
an outlay of Rs 2.7 lakh crore for the Ministry of
Road Transport and Highways i.e. 30% higher as
compared to budget estimate of Rs 1.99 lakh crore.
An amount of Rs 79,590 crore was also allocated to
Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana. This is an initiative of
the government to provide affordable housing to
economically weaker section and low income
groups through financial assistance.

Moreover as per interim budget 24-25, spending of
over Rs 11.1 lac crore is proposed on infrastructure.

The Pradhan Mantri Gati Shakti National Master
Plan launched by Prime Minister in Oct 21 for
multimodal connectivity, Smart City Mission and
Amrut are also contributing to cement
consumption. All these measures are likely to
increase cement consumption and may help us in
increase of sale.

India's cement demand recorded growth during
the FY 23-24 and further increase is expected
during FY 24-25 driven primarily by South Indian

markets which have surplus installed capacity. This
affects the profitability directly.

The total annual installed cement production
capacity in India stands at 541 MTPA with
Telangana where the one million production unit of
CCl is located accounting for 29.77 MTPA. The per
capita consumption of cement stands at 216 kp
currently and is still far below the world average.

The Center’s infrastructure budget allocation saw
substantial increase of 17% during FY 24-25 as
compared to previous year. The housing sector
accounts for about 60 to 65% of the cement
demand followed by infrastructure sector which
constitute approximately 24% of the total cement
demand.

The housing sector demand is expected to remain
buoyant in the post pandemic period aided by a low
interest rate regime and the government's
intervention for affordable price housing,

The government of India has also adopted to use
bulk cement instead of bitumen in construction of
new road projects on the ground that cement is
more durable and cheaper to maintain than
bitumen in the long run.

Cautionary Stalement

Statements in this "Management Discussions &
Analysis” describing Company's objectives,
prejections and estimates are forward looking
statements and progressive within the meaning of
applicable security laws and regulations. Actual
results may vary from those expressed or implied
depending upon economic canditions, Govt. policies
and other factors.
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Bokajan unit organized the dealers meet. The event brought
together key stakeholders to discuss business strategies & strengthen
partnerships in cement industry. This initiative reflects CCI's commitment
to enhancing collaboration & driving growth in the region.
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CCI organised Dealers Meet in Manipur, Imphal, Great
discussions on enhancing our partnerships and driving growth in
the cement industry.

ﬂ'""'

Regional Office, Hyderabad has launched an interactive platform
called "Mason Adda" to facilitate effective communication between
masons & consumers in areas where labourers gather. To create a
direct channel for CCI to engage with its key stakeholders.
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Rajban Cement Factory's Gate Sale Dealer Meet chaired by Sh PK Chand,
Director , CCI. A successful event that brought together dealers and
cement enthusiasts.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1. Company's philosophy on Code of
Governance:

The philosophy of the Company in relation to
Corporate Governance is that Cement Corporation
of India Ltd (CCI) believes in financial prudence,
customers' satisfaction, transparency,
accountability and commitment to stakeholders.
CCl practices based the guidelines that
Government of India issues from bme to time
should go a long way to enhance the value for all
stakeholders i.e. shareholders, customers,
suppliers, creditors, Government of India, State
Governments, Government Agencies !
Departments and the society atlarge.

2. Board of Directors:

i Constitution of the Board:

Table 1:

Cement Corporation of India Limited is a
Government company within the meaning of
section 2(45) of the Companies Act, 2013. As per
the Articles of Association of the company, the
power Lo appoint directors rests with the President
of India. The strength of the Board shall not be less
than 3 Directors and not more than 12.

ii. Composition of Board:

Ason 31st March 2024, the Board of CCl comprised
of six (6) Directors out of which two are Functional
Directors, two Part-time Official Directors, who are
nominees of the Administrative Ministry and two
Non-official Independent Directors.

The name and categories of Directors, their
attendance in Board Meeting held during the year
and at the last Annual General Meeting as well as
the number of Directorship and Committee (Audit
Committee) positions are given in Table 1.

Categories of Directors and the Directorship and Committes
positions held by them

Functional Directors:
1. Shri Sanjay Banga, 5 5 Yes 1 NIL
C&EMD*
2. | Shri Pradeep Kumar 5 5 Yes 1 NIL
Chand, Director
{Finance)
I— e L
3.  Ms Mukia Shekhar** 5 5 NA 9 NIL
(w.ef. 12.04.2023]
4. Shrifoseph Atul T 5 5 Yes 3 NIL
Barla
Independent Directors:
5. Dr Ravindra 5 5 Yes 1 3
Shivshankar Arali*=™™
6. | Dr Manju Baghel 5 5 Yes 1 NIL
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* Shri Sanjay Banga, C&MD, CCl was entrusted with
the additional charge of the post of Chairman &
Managing Director, Engineering Projects [India)
Limited (EPIL) with effect from 01.10.2023 to
31.12.2023 or tll further orders, whichever is
earliest subject to approval of ACC. Pursuant to
Order No. 12-16/4/2017-TSW (e-12883) dated
07th November, 2023 of Ministry of Heavy
Industries, GovL of India, Shri Sanjay Banga, C&MD,
CCl ceased to be Chairman & Manaping Director,
Engineering Projects (India) Limited (EPIL) with
effect from 20th November, 2023 (F/N).

**Ms. Mukta Shekhar, Joint Secretary, Ministry of
Heavy Industry was appointed as Part-time Official
Director (Government Nominee) on the Board of
CCl wef 12.04.2023 vice Dr. Renuka Mishra,
Economic Adviser, Ministry of Heavy Industry.

***Designated Pariner at following L1LPs:

- Health Point Multispeciality Hospital LLF,
Sangli, Maharashtra

+ Synergy Multi Speciality Hospital LLP,
Sangli, Maharashtra

- Sangli Urban Co. Op Bank, Sangli

The company held five Board Meetings i.e. on
28.06.2023, 31.08.2023, 27.09.2023, 09.01.2024
and 17.01.2024 during the year 2023-24.

iii. Scheduling and selection of agenda items
for Board /Committee meetings:

- The meetings are convened by giving
appropriate notice after obtaining the approval of
the Chairman of the Board/Committee. The
C&MD/Directors decides the date and place of
Board /Committee meetings. Detailed agenda
noles, management reporis, and other explanalory
statements are circulated in advance among the
members to facilitate meaningful, informed and
focused decisions during the meeting. When urgent
issues need to be addressed, meetings are called at
shorter notice or resolutions are passed by
circulation in due compliance with applicable
provisions whether enunciated in the Act or its
Articles.

- Wherever it is not practical to attach any

document to the agenda noles due Lo its
confidential nature, or in special and exceptional
circumstances, additional or supplemental items,
such papersare placed on the table in the meeting.

- The agenda papers are circulated after
obtaining the approval of the Functional
Director/Chairman & Managing Director.

- Presentations are made in the Board /
Committees meetings on matters related to
Finance, Operations, Human Resources, etc. to
enable members Lo take informed decisions, as and
when necessary.

- The members of the Board have complete
access toall information of the Company. The Board
is also free o recommend any issue that it may
consider important for inclusion in the agenda.
Senior managemenl officials are called to provide
additional inputs to the items being discussed by
the Board, as and when necessary.

iv. Recording of minutes of the Board /
Commitiee meetings:

Minutes of the proceedings of each Board /
Committee meeting are duly recorded in the
Minutes Book. The minutes of each Board meeting
are circulated among Board members in the next
Board Meeting for their confirmation. The minutes
of Sub-Committee of the Board are also placed
before the Board for its information.

v. Follow-up mechanismn:

An Action Taken Report on the important decisions
of the Board /Committee members is presented as
and when the ATR agenda received. This acts as an
effective follow-up, review and report process.

vi.Compliance:

It is our endeavor to ensure that all applicable
provisions of law, rules, and puidelines are adhered
to while preparing the apenda notes. The Company
ensures compliance of all the applicable provisions
of the Companies Act and various other statutory
requirements under different laws. The requisite
information is regularly provided to the Board as
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detailed below:-

- Memorandum of Understanding (MOU),
Award of large contracts.

- Minutes of the meetings of the Audit
Committee and other Committees of the
Beoard.

- Show cause, demand, prosecution notices,

Other items in accordance with the law and
DPE Guidelines.

Quarterly Compliance certificate of
statutory provisions.

Other matters desired by the Board from
time to time,

and penalty notices, if any, which are vii. Non-Execative Directors' compensation and
materially important. disclosures:

- Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous The Company do not pay sitting fee to Government
OCCUITENCES. Mominee Directors. However, the Independent

Directors are being paid sitting fees at the rate of Rs.
- Major investments, formation of 15,000/~ (Rs. Fifteen thousand only) per Board
subsidiaries, joint ventures, and strategic meeting and Rs. 12,000/~ (Rs. Twelve thousand

Alliances. only) for Committee meetings. Out of pocket

expenses for attending the meeting of Board of

- Disclosure of interest by Directors about Directors and Committees thereof are also re-
directorships and commitiee positions imbursed to Independent Directors.

occupied by them in other companies /
firms, etc.

viii. Directorship and Membership in Committee of Board of Directors of other
Companies held (As on 31.03.2024)

Functional Directors:
1. | Shri Sanjay Banga, Functional Director NIL
CEMD
Shri Pradeep Kumar
2. Chand, Functional Director NIL
Director (Finance)
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Government Nominee Directors

3. | Ms. Mukta Shekhar Govt. Nominee 1. H.M.T. (International)
(wel 12.04.2023) Director Lirmited

H.M.T. Limited

Bridge & Roof Co (India) Ltd
NEPA Ltd

Rajasthan Electronics and
Instruments Ltd
Engineering Projects [India)
Limited

7. HMT Machine Tools Limited

ol ol

i

Additional Director 1. HMT Watches Limited

4. | Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla | Govt. Nominee 1. Hindustan Cables Limited
Director 2. Tungabhadra Steel Products
Limited
Independent Directors:
Dt Ravindra
5. | Shivshankar Arali [“_[!EF'E“":IE“': 1. Health Point M ultspeciality
i Hospital LLP
2. Synergy Muld Speciality
Hospital LLP
3. Sangli Urban Co. Op Bank,
Sangli
6. | Dr. Manju Baghel [ndependent NIL
Director
ix. Training of Board Members X Code of Conduct
CCl takes initiatives to train its Board members The company is committed to conduct its business
about CCI's profile, business, etc. All the relevant in accordance with the highest standards of
issues and significant developments related to the husiness ethics and comply with all applicable
worling of CCI are imparted to Directors by the laws, rules and regulations. It is confirmed that the
management of CCI from time to time. Board members and Sr. Management Personnel
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have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct
during the year 2023-24.

xi. Policies for Risk Assessment &
Minimization

The risk management system is an integrated part
and aligned with the corporate and operational
objectives. Risk management is undertaken as part
of normal business practice and not as a separate
task at settime.

3. Audit Committee

The company is having an Audit Committee
consisting of the following Directors:-

1) Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali,

Independent Director as Chairman

2) Dr. Manju Baghel, Independent Director,
asMember

3) Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla, Director [GovL
Nominee) as Member

The Audit Committee has the powers, role and
terms of reference in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Guidelines on
Corporate Governance as issued by Department of
Public Enterprises.

During the year 2023-24, six Audit Committee
Meetings were held on 15.06.2023, 26.06.2023,
26.09.2023, 14.12.2023, 15.01.2024 and
0(02.03.2024 and attended by following members:-

1. Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar 6
Arali

2. Dr. Manju Baghel 6

3. Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla 6

4. Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Being a Government Company, Remuneration and
allowances payable to Directors is determined by
the Government and as per the terms and
conditions of their appointment / contract.
However, Department of Public Enterprises has
directed that each CPSE shall constitute a
Nomination & Remuneration Committee headed
by a Part-time Non-official Director which will
decide the Annual Bonus /Variable pay policy forits
distribution across the Employees.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the

company consists of the following Directors:-

1) Dr. Manju Baghel, Independent Director
as Chairperson

2) Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali,
Independent Director, as Member

3) Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla, Director (Govt.
Nominee) as Member

During the year 2023-24, Four Remuneration
Committee Meetings were held on 07.07.2023,
25.08.2023, 26.09.2023 and 11.12.2023 and

attended by fallowing members:-
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1. Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar 4 4
Arali

2. Dr. Manju Baghel 4 4

3. ShriJoseph Atul T. Barla 4 4

Detail of Remuneration paid to Directors/ KMP:
Details of remuneration paid to Directors/KMP of the Company for the year 2023-24

are given below:-

(Rs. In lakhs)

1. | Shri Sanjay Banga,
CEMD

31484

0.00

8.89

0.39

382

5L71

2. | Shri Pradeep

28.448

0.00

5.90

(.63

idn

44.32

Kumar Chand,
Dvirector (Finance)

3 Shri Ajay Kumar
Sharma,
Co. Secretary

19.70 587 0.00

0.00 018 236 2812

Total 80.02 18.64 0.00

14.79 1.20 9.50 12415

5. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Commitice

As per the provisions of Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to
have a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.
The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the company consists of the following
Directors:-

1) Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali,
Independent Director as Chairman

2) Dr. Manju Baghel, Independent Director
as Member

3) Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla, Director [GovL
Nominee) as Member

During the year 2023-24, two Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Committee meetings were
held on 27.12.2023 and 24.02.2024 and attended
by following members:-

1. Dr. Ravindra Shivshankar Arali 2 2
2. Dr. Manju Baghel 2 2
3. Shri Joseph Atul T. Barla 2 2
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6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Cement Corporation of India Limited is an Unlisted
Government Company and the entire share capital
is held by Hon'ble President of India and his
nominees. Hence, no such committee is required to
be constituted.

7. Subsidiary Companies

u v i

The Company has no Subsidiary Company.

8. Annual General Meeting

Details of Annual General Meetings for the last

three years are given hereunder:-

25t February, 2022 28" September, 2022 29% September, 2023
Date & Time at 04:30 PM at 11:30 AM at 11:00 AM
Scope Complex, Scope Complex, Scope Complex,
Location Lodhi Road, Lodhi Road, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110003 New Delhi-110003 New Delhi-110003
Special Mo Yos No
Resolution(s)
passed
0. Disclosures The company followed the Accounting Standards
as prescribed by the Institute of Chartered
L Related Party Transactions: Accountants of India subject to the comments &

The Company has not entered into any significant
related party transactions with the Directors or
their relatives [Disclosure made by directors
individually pursuant to Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013) having potential interest
with the Company at large.

II. Compliance of Laws:

The Company has taken steps to comply with the
guidelines on Corporate Governance issued by
Department of Public Enterprises [DPE] in May
2010,

There are no personal expenses incurred for the
Board of Directors except which are as per terms of
appointmentas contractual obligations.

. Accounting Treatment:

observations as given by the Statutory Auditors in
its Report for the Financial Statement prepared for
the financial year ended as on 31stMarch, 2024.

IV. Presidential Directives:

MHI has issued presidential directives on
01.09.2023 to implement pay revision notionally
effective from 01.01.2017 and actually with effect
from 01.04.2023. The said order [Presidential
Directives) has been implemented.

10. Vigilance

CCI, being a PSU, the records of the Company are
open to Audit by Comptroller and Auditor General
of India and open to inspection by Vigilance. CClhas
aVigilance Department, headed by CVO.

11. Meansof communication
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Annual financial performance is posted on the
Company's websile. www.cciltd.in. The Company
also hosts official news on significant corporate
decisions and activities on the website of CCI from
Lime to time.

12, Whistle Blower Policy:

The company has established a mechanism for
employees to report concern about unethical
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of
policy. The employees have direct access to the
CMD & Chairperson, Audit Committee who are the
Competent Authority under the Whistle Blower
Palicy of the company. The whistle Blower Policy is
hosted on the official website of the Company
www.cciltd.in

13. Compliance Certificate:

Certificate from M/s Amit Agrawal & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries confirming the
compliance subject to their remarks and
observation thereon with the Conditions of

Corporate Governance as stipulated under the
guidelines issued by Department of Public
Enterprises and Management's reply forms part of
the Annual Report for the financial year 2023-24
which is Annexed herewith.

FORAND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sd/-

(Sanjay Banga)

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN No: 09353339

Date:30.09.2024
Place: New Delhi
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Office © H-63, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Dethi-110092, INDIA
Ph, ; +81-11-49423788, 43019279, Mob.. +91-0811272307
E-mail : amitagcs@gmall com, amitZkas@yahoo.com

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members,

Cement Corporation of India Limited
CORE -5, Scope Complex 7

Lodhi Road New Delhi-110003 IN
CIN: UT4899DL1965GOI004322

We have examined the complinnes of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Cement
Corporation OF India Limited, (herewith referred as ‘the Company’) for the vear ended on 31"
Murch, 2024 as stipulated in ‘Guidclines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises, 20107 vide Notification Na. | No. 18{8)/2005- GM originally issued on 22.06.2007
and revised guidelines vide office memorandumn dated 14* May, 2010 by the Deparoment of
Public Enterprises, Ministy of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises Government of [ndia and
annexure medtioned there under (hersin referred a8 *Guidelines’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation therect, adopted by the Company for
ensuring the compliance of the conditions of corporate governance as stipuleted in above
mentioned guidelines. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the (Inancial
staternent ol the company.

[t our ppinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 10 us,
we hereby certify (hat the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as
stipulated in shovementioned DPE guidefines.

We further state that such complisnce is neither an assurance to the future viability of the
Company nor the efficiency of the effectivencss with which the Management has conducted the
alTuirs of the company.

Place : Dally)

Diate : 12.06.2024

C5 Amit Agrawal
.' (Partner)
=m0, 3311, CP. No, : 3647
UDTN: FOO5311FO00561284
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Amit Agrawal & Associates
Company Secretaries

Offica - HG3, Vijay Chowk, Laxmi Nagar, Dethi-110082, INDIA
PhH. - +91.-11.494 23788 43013279, Mab - +81-98 11272307
E-mall | amitages@gmail com, amit2kas@yahaa.com

Form Mo, MR-3

SECRETARIAL ALDIT REPORT
FOR THE IINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH. 2024

[Furswant o section 204(1) of the Companies Aet, 2013 und rute No9 of the Companies
(Appointment #nd Remuncrution Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Memnbees,

Cement Corporation OF Indian Limited
CORE -5, Scope Complex 7

Lodhi Road Mew Delhi-1 10003 [

ClIN: LIT4309000. 1065604322

We report than:

We have eonducted the Seerctarial Audit of the complisnee of applicable sistutory provisions
and the adherence to good comorate pravtices by Cement Corpuration OF India Limited
(hereinufier referred a5 “the Company') having its registerad office at Care -8, Scape Complex 7,
Lodbi Road, New Delhi-110003. Secretarial Audit was canducted in o manner that provided us a
rengonable basis for evaluating the corporare canducrsstaiutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thersun,

Company's Respunsibilities

The Company’s Mangpement and Hoard of Directors are responsible for the malatenance of
secrefarial recond under the Companies Act, 2013 and compliance of the provisions of Corporaie
and olher applicable laws, rles, regululions. sundards, Further the Conmpany's managenient mngl
the Board of Dirgciors are ulso responsible for éstablishing and maintaining adequate sysioms
and process, commensurate with the size and operations of the Company (o identify, monitor and
ensure compliznces with the npplicable laws. rules, reguiations and guidefines.

Additor’s Responsibilities Statement

Our responsibility is only w examing and verify thase complisnges on o test basis and express an
opinion an these secreturial rocords based on our awdil,

We have followed the nudit practices and processes ps were appropriate to oblain reasonnble
assurance about the correctmess of the cont@ntg of the Secretarinl records, The verifeation was
done on test bosis 1o ensore that correet facts are reflected [ secretirial records, We balieve tha
the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our apinion,
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We have not verified the correctness and appropristeness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company, Wherever required, we have obtaimed the Management representation
about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
of the efficacy or effectivencss with which the management has conducted the affuirs of the

Company.
Limitations

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, finnncial and operating controls,
there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-compliances may not be
detected, even though the audit is properly planned and performed in accordance with the
Secretarial Auditing Standurds as prescribed by Institute of Company Secretaries of India (1CS1).

Further, we conducted the secretarial audit by examining the secretarinl records inclusding
minutes, documents, registers, other records and returns related to the applicable laws on the
Company etc. received via electronic means, The management has confirmed that the records
submitted to us are the true and correct. We have also relied upon representation given by the
management of the Company for certain areas which otherwise requires physical verification.

Basis of Opinion

We have followed the audit practices, secretarial auditing standards and processes as were
applicable and sppropriate 1o obtain reasonable assurance about the cormectness of the coments of
the Secretarial rccords. The verification in some cases was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in seeretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. We also believe that the avdit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Report on Secretarial Records and Compliances thereof

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hercby report that In our opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31, 2024 complied with Lhe statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company hus proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place 10
the extent, in the manner and subject (o the reporting made hereinafter.

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records
maintained by M/s. Cement Corporation Of India Limited for the financial vear ended on 3™
March, 2024 gccording to the provisions of!

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

{ii) The Secretarial Standards 1ssued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
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(iit) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:

a} The Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

by Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

c) Payment of Minimum Wages Act, 1948

d) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

e} The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal
Act), 2013

f) Pavment of Bonus Act, 1965

g) Employees' State Insurince Act, 1948;

i) Indian Trust Act, 1882 created for PF purposes for its employees.

i) Environment (Protection) Act, 1986

i) Food Safety and Standard of India Act, 2011

k) The Factory Act, 1948

1) Compulsory Notification of Vacancy Act 1959

m) Pavment of Wages Act

n) Workman's and Compensation Act

o) TheGratuity Act

p) Egual Remuneration Act

q) Industrial Dispute Act

r) Employment of Children Act

5} Indian Stamp Act

1) The Limestone and Dolomite Mines Labour Welfare Fund Act, 1972

However, During the period under review, provisions of the following regulations were not
applicable to the Company because of clause (I) no Dl and ECD has been taken by the
Company since incorposation and for (1I) & (1) clouses below the Company is unlisted
Company, Hence, comments are not required to be made in respect of these clauses:

L Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and rules and regulation made there under to
the extent Foreign Direct Investrment, Owerseas Direct lovestment and External
Commercial Borrowings.

ll.  The Rules, Regulations and Guidelines preseribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act).

L The Listing Agreement with any Stock Exchange.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Aet,
Rules, Repulations, Guidelines, standards ete. mentioned above excepl our observation as given
below;

a. The time gap between rwo audit comnitiee meeting is mare than 120 days.
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The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Non-
Executive Directors and Women Director.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
noles on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

Further, the Company has 4 charges which are shown on MCA Portal due to non-filing of form
|7 (Form CHG-4 under Companies Act, 2013) with the Registrar of Companies, however the
same were satisfied years ago as per One Time Settlement (OTS) with the respective Bank/
Finaneial Institutions.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views wre captured and
recorded as part of the minutes,

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct
and inditect tax laws and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts has not been
reviewed in this Audit since the same have been subject to review by starutory financial audit by
other designated professional.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events / corporate actions in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. having a
major bearing on the Company's afTairs:

Place: Delhi
Date : 19.07.2024

CS Amfit Agrawal
{ Partner)
M. MNo. F5311, C.P, No. : 3647

UDIN: FOOS3 | IFO00776741

74 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24



by the Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Unit as at 31st
March 2024, its profit orits loss, and its Cash Flows

Prey= - L-..- iy @a-
PVRN & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
6772/2, Block 10B, Sparda Bhawan , D.B Gupta Road,
Dev Nagar, Karol Bagh, New Delhi - 110005
Ph: - 9811305334 E - mail: jindalrahul60@gmail.com
Independent Report

To for the year then ended.
The Members, Basis for Qualified Opinion
Cement Corporation ofIndia Limited,
New Delhi 1 Execution of title and lease deeds of land of

certain units in favor of company continues
Reporton the Audit of the Financial Statements to be pending and land details are subject to

reconciliadon. Further, the DDA had suo
We have audited the accompanying standalone molto transferred the land measuring 14.20
financial statements of CEMENT CORPORATION acres o SDMC on 11.04.2017, the cost of
OF INDIA LIMITED ("the Company"”) CIN No which was transferred to "Recoverable
-U74899D1L1965 GO1004322 which comprises the from outside parties”. Moreover, the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and Statement physical possession of land measuring 6.74
of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flow for acres, given to railways for constructing
the year then ended, and notes to the financial siding is not yet handed over to the
statements, including a summary of significant company. Further, MCD vide letter dated
accounting policies and other explanatory 22.04.2024 has communicated handing
information, in which are incorporated four units over of 9 acres of MCD land situated at
(Tandur, Tandur YRO, Bokajan & Silchar Grinding Firozpur Kalan to CCl in lieu of 14.20 acres
Unit) audited by the branch auditors appointed by ofland, possession of which is still pending.
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India and
Rajban [(Himachal Pradesh), Mandhar, Charkhi 2. No provision is made in respect of the
Dadri, Akaltara, Mayagaon, Nayagaon Expansion liahility arising out of acquisition and use of
and Delhi Grinding unit, Kurkunta, Adilabad, government land outside CCl's Adilabad
Bhatinda Grinding Unit and Corporate Office Township as road from pump house to
audited by us. national highway 7, the alienation order of

which is awaited.
Qualified Opinion

3. The effect of inconsistencies pointed outin

In our opinion and to the best of our information the special audit report in relation to
and according to the explanations given to us, Yerraguntla unit sold in 1998, has not been
except for the matters described in the Basis for considered due to pending reconciliation.
(Qualified Opinion paragraph, the aforesaid
Financial Statements give the information required 4. The balance of certain Trade Receivables,

Loans and advances, Trade Payables,
Deposits to and from parties and Other
Liabilities are subject to confirmation and
reconciliation. The financial impact, if any
arising out of non-reconciliation is
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unascertainahle.

The company has seven production units
and a grinding unit at Delhi, where
operations were discontinued between the
years 1996 to 1999 and a grinding unit at
Bhatinda (Punjab) which did not
commence production. As per view of the
Managemenl, no provision for impairment
of assets, under AS-28 issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India,
is required because realizable value
expected is normally more than the book
value of the Assets.

The company had issued ¥3554325 Non-
cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
of ¥1,000/- each for a value of ¥355.43
crores to Govt of India on 22" March 2007
for 7 (seven) years. As per lerms of issue,
above preference shares were to be
redeemed before 22™ March 2014, which
is not in consonance with the terms of the
issue. Management informed that further
action for re- issue of preference share has
been sought from Ministry as per Cabinet /
BIFR direction.

Out of the Total Inventory of I18,158.40
Lakh the inventory of non-operating units
of ¥ 2,258.82 Lakh {around 12.44% of Total
Inventory) had been carried forward in the
books from several past years. Having
regard to nature of inventory items
involved and comments of branch auditors
on inventory in their respective audit
reports, there may be considerable
depletion in value of inventory the effect of
which has not been quantified or provided
for by the managemenl in the financial
statements.

As per the audit report of different units
following are the qualification points as
follows:

In Adilabad, Akaltara, Bhantinda Grinding
Unit, Charkhi Dadri, Kurkunta, Mandhar
and Nayagaon units, No Fixed asset
verification report was made available to us
by the management thereby guestioning

the actual presence of such assets as
reported in financial statements. The effect
of which is not possible to quantify.

b) In Akaltara and Charkhi Dadri, provisicn on
inventory was provided prior to our audit
period. However, In the Akaltara, Charkhi
Dadri, Kurkunta and Mandhar units, the
management failed to provide the physical
verification report and basis for provision,
which raises doubt about the actual
existence ofinventory.

c) In Tandur unit, with respect to inventory of
stores and spares, wherein, the auditor is
unahle to verify the existence and
condition as the inventory was nol
adequately labelled or tagped. Some spare
parts were scatiered in an open ground
which lead to rusting & damage of spare
parts. Auditor is unable to comment on
whelher Lthere is impairment or
obsolescence in the value of said inventory
asal 31" March 2024.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.0ur
responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants ol India
together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules there under; and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate Lo provide a basis for our
opinion.

Emphasis of Matier
We draw attention to following notes in the
financial statements:

a) The Company was declared sick vide
Hon'ble BIFR letter No. 501 /96-BENCH IV
SOL dated 08.08.1996. Hon'ble BIFR, in its
hearing held on 21.03.2006 has approved
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b)

d)

the Rehabilitation Scheme prepared by
M/s. IFCI (0OA) and approved by Govt. of
India. The Sanctioned Scheme was
circulated by Hon'ble BIFR on 03.05.2006
which inter alia envisaged settlement ol
secured and unsecured creditors and
expansion/technological up gradation of 3
operating plants and closure / sale of
remaining 7 non-operating plants. As per
sanctioned scheme closure has been made
at 7 units. MHI vide letter dated 09.02.2022
directed to sale plant and machinery, stores
elc. of these nmon- operating units.
Accordingly, Plant and machinery along
with other assets of Alkaltara, Charld Dadri,
Kurkunta and Mandhar units was sold
through M/s MSTC. Sale of other plants is
underprogress.

The sale of the Plant & Machinery of the
Kurkunta unit was completed through M/s
MSTC (A Govt. of India Enterprise) on "asis
where is clean sweep basis” at ¥53.00
crores. Profit on sale of these assets is
shown as an exceptional income in Note No.
31AA to Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March 2024,

The sale of the Plant & Machinery of the
Mandhar unit was completed through M/s
MSTC (A Govt. of India Enterprise) on "as is
where is clean sweep basis" at ¥55.64
crores. Profit on sale of these assets is
shown as an exceptional income in Note No.
31AA to Financial Statements for the year
ended 31st March 2024.

As per the puidelines, 3rd Pay Revision for
IDA employees has been issued by DPE on
29.05.2017. As per practice, the
recommendation from 'Board of Directors'
was sent to MHI for approval. The
necessary approval from DHI is received
and the same has been implemented in the
current financial year.

As mentioned in Note No 34.19 of the
Financial Statement, the company has
made a provision of Rs 7.95 crore in books

of Mandhar Unit in the matter of M /s SAIL.
CCI's appeal against such amount payable
to SAIL were dismissed by Delhi High Court
and Supreme Court. CAG had also
commented under Section 143(6)(b) of the
Companies Act 2013 for the Financial
Statements for the Year ended 31.03.2023.

e) Note No. 11A & No. 31B wherein the
Company has capitalized and calculated
depreciation on certain Spares and Stand-
by-equipment amounting to ¥ 14.93 crore
which were originally charged off to the
statement of profit and loss during the
period ( from FY 2016-17 to FY 2022-23)
by reversing the same and disclosing under
prior period items. As explained by the
management, such Spares and Stand-by-
equipment have been capitalized during
the current year with a retrospective effect
from FY 2016-17, considering the Revised
AS-10-PPE (w.e.f 2016) which requires the
componentization of PPE. However, in our
opinion, the Company should also consider
the componentization of the existing assets
based on the technical evaluation.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these
matters.

Information other than the financial
statements and anditor's report thereon

The Company's board of directors is responsible
for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information
included in the Board's Report including
Annexures to Board's Report, Business
Responsibility Report but does not include the
financial stalements and our audilor's report
thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with

77 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24



> Qualilyy Wil Mo Compitetnine

the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information;
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
toreportin this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone
Financial Statements

The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible
for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with respect to the
preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash
Mows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding ol the
assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate implementation
and maintenance of accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and [air view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of
Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to ligquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for
overseeing the company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a puarantee that
an audil conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements hased on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the
audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves perferming procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in Lhe financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company's
preparation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
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the appropriateness of the accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company's Directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
[inancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
oblained is sufficient and appropriale to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Other Matters

We did not audit Lhe financial statements of 4 (four)
branches included in the standalone financial
statements of the company whose financial
statements/ financial information include total
assets of ¥350.71 crore as at 31st March 2024 and
total revenues of $359.99 crore (Approx. 74.57% of
total Revenue) for the year ended on that date.
These linancial statements have been audited by
the branch auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion in so f@r as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in
respect of branches, is based solely on the report of
such branch auditors.

We have examined Company’s few critical financial
indicators viz. inventory holding ratio, current
ratio, sales praph, drop in man power as stipulated
in Standard on Auditing {5A) 570 (Revised) {Going
Concern) and found that these showed a negative
picture about the Company till FY 2019-20, but
almostl all financial indicators have showed a
positive picture from the FY 2020-21 and as such
we have nothing to report in the matter for the FY
2023-24.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above
matier

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued
by the Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Act, and
on the basis of such checks of the books and
records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the
information and explanation given to us, we

b}

d)

give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4
of thesaid Order.

We are enclosing our report in terms of
Section 143(5) of the Act, on the basis of
such checks ol the books and records of the
Company as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and
explanation given to us, in the Annexure 1
on the directions and sub directions issued
hy the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act,
we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the
best ol our knowledge and beliel were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as
required by law have heen kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and proper
returns adequate for the purposes of our
audit have been received from the branches
notvisited by us.

The reports on the accounts of the branch
offices of the Company audited under
Section 143(8) ol the Act by branch
auditors have been sent to us and have been
properly dealt with by us in preparing this
report.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of accounts and returns,

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone
financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Being a Government Company, pursuant to
the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th
June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate
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E)

h)

ii.

jii.

iv.

Affairs, Government of India, provisions of
sub-section {2) of Section 164 of the
Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to
the Company.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin "Annexure B",

With respect to other matters to be
included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to
us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position
in its financial statements-Refer Note No
32 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

There have not been any amounts, required

to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company in
accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made
thereunder.

a) The management has represented that, to the
best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested
[either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind af funds) by the
company Lo or in any other persan(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities
["Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the company ("Uldmate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,

b)

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the
best of it's knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds
have been received by the company from any
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Utimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures which we
considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to their
notice that has caused them to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (if)
contain any material mis-statement.

The unit is not eligible to declare of pay
dividend during the year.

Based on our examination, which included test
checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account
for the financial year ended March 31, 2024
which hasa feature of recording audit trail {edit
log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software. Further,
during the course of our audit we did not come
across any instance of the audit trail feature
being tampered with.

For PVREN & CO
Chartered Accountant
FERN No. : D04062N

Sd/-
CA Rahul Jindal

Partner

M. No. 522355

Place : New Delhi

Date : 21-08-2024

UDIN : 24522355BKEARU1236
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Annexure A’
Annexure to the Independent Auditors’ Report

|Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our Report of even date to the Members of
CEMENT CORPORATION OF INDIA ETD on the
accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024]

On the basis of such checks as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and
Explanations given to us during the course of our

audit, we report that:

1.

a) In respect of its Property, Plant, Equipment
and Intangible Assets:

A The Company has maintained proper

records showing full particulars, including
gquantitative details and situation of the
property, plant & equipment for units other
than the 7 Nen-Operating Units (Adilabad,
Akaltara, Charkhi Dadri, Kurkunta,
Mandhar, Nayagaon and Nayagaon

expansion).

b)

With respect to the NOU, no fixed asset
register made available to us, although as
perinternal auditor the same is available at
the units.

According to the information and
explanation given to us the company is
maintaining proper records showing full
particulars of intangible assets.

As explained lo us, property, plant &
equipment have been physically verified by
the management during the year in
accordance with the phased manner
program of verification adopted by the
management, provides for physical
verification of all the property plant &
equipment at reasonable intervals for all
units.

Title deeds of immovable properties are
held in name of the Company except some
of the units as mentioned in the branch
audit reports, Following Title deeds of land
and other properties of the Company are
yettn be executed. Detail given as under: -

1. Mandhar - - - - -
[1.06 Acres)

2, Akalrara = E: 5 & z
(495.75
Acres)

3. Bhatinda 5.57 PSEB No Since 1995 Deemed
(10.12 (Gurunanak ownership
Acres) Dev with CCI

Thermal
Power
station
Bhatinda)
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explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the
company has not revalued its property, plant &
equipmenl during the year.

e) There is no proceeding initiated or are
pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules there
under.

2. In respect of its inventory:

(a) As explained to us, the inventories of
finished goods, semi-finished goods, and of stores,
spare parts and raw materials, were physically
verified at the end of the year by the Management
for units localed in Bokajan, Silchar and Tandur.
However no physical verification report of
inventory has been provided to us for Non-
operating Units. With respect to Non-operating
units the frequency of such verification is
unreasonable, procedure and coverage followed by
the management were not sufficient and
appropriate.

(b) According to the information and
explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records to the company, the
company has not availed any working capital limit
hence reporting under this clause is not applicable.

>
m iz Qualily Wil No Compitetmine

4. | Nayagaon
One Million
Tonne Plant
and Delhi | - - . .
Cement
Grinding
Unit  [6.74
Acres) |

3. Nayagaon | - - - - -
(0.146
Hectares)

6. | Head Office | 266.58 Standing Mo Since 1988 Deemed
Building Conference ownership

of  Public with CCI1
Enterprise
Gross carrying value of land where title deeds are yet to be executed as per Note No.
34.04 is vet to be ascertain, except 10.12 acres (Bhatinda Grinding Unit).
d) According to the information and 3. According to the information &

explanations given to us, the company has not
made any investment in, provided any guarantee or
security, or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Parinerships or
other parties during the year and hence reporting
under this clause (iii) of the order is not applicable.

4. In our opinion and accerding to the
information and explanations given to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of
Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing puarantees and securities.

5. In our opinion and accerding to the
information and explanation are given to us, the
company has not accepted deposits or deemed to
be depaosits. Therefore, the pravisians of clause (v)
ofthe order are not applicable to the Company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the cost records
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules
made by the Central Government under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the
opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost
records have been made and maintained except for
the units closed/non-operational as per Hon'ble
BIFR. We have, however, not made a detailed
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examination of these records with a view to
determining whether they are accurate or
complete.

7% In respectof statutory dues:

(a) Aceording to the records of the Company
and infermation and explanations given to us, the
Company has been regular in depositing
undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, employees state insurance (ESI), Investor

Education and Protection Fund, Income-tax, Tax
Deducted at Sources, Tax Collected at Source,
Professional Tax, Sales Tax, Value Added Tax (VAT),
Service Tax, GST, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Cess
and other material statutory dues applicable to it,
with the appropriate authorities. In the following
undisputed cases, the payment is in arrear as at
Balance Sheet date for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable:

Dead Rent Dead Rent 37.10
Employment/ Employment/ 3.09

Professional Tax Professional Tax

Entry Tax Entry Tax 13.77
Goods and service tax Goods and service tax f.31

Rayalty Royalty 84.63

Sales tax Sales tax 1565.53

Surcharge/Additional Tax | Surcharge/Additional Tax 4.18
Cess on Cement Cess on Cement 16.79
Gratuity Gratuity 15.14
Income Tax Income Tax 0.40

(b) According to the information and Excise Duty, Sales Tax, VAT, Cess and other material

explanations given to us, the disputed amounts
payable in respect of Income-Tax, Custom Duty,

statutory dues in arrears were outstanding as at 31
March, 2024 isgiven below:

Panchayat Tax Panchayat Tax 6.02
Excise Duty Excise Duty 349.02
Non-Agri Tax (NALA Tax) | Non -Agri Tax (NALA Tax) 51.13
Service Tax Service Tax 140.36
Property Tax Provisions Property Tax Provisions 290,04
Raovyalty Pavable Rovalty Payable 56.32
Rui.raltjr and Cess Rovalty and Cess 0.553
Gratuity Gratuity 220.7
GST GST 24.59
Sales Tax Sales Tax 598.35
Income Tax Income Tax 6.81 |
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8.

According to the information and

explanation given to us, the company does not have
transactions which are not recorded in the books of
account have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the yearin the tax assessment under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) accordingly
clause (viii) of the order is not applicable.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f

10.
(a)

(b)

9.

i ,
-5

{a) According to the information and
explanation given to us the company has defaulted
in the repayment of principle amount of loans and
interest thereon in respect of dues as per details
given below -

Interest Free 150.90 From 2011

Loan Govt of India | Crore Principal i.e. 4748 Days | -
123.85 From 2011

Mon Plan Lean | Govt ofIndia | Crore Interest Le. 4748 Days | -

The company has not been declared willful
defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lender.

The company has not taken any term loan
during the year and there is no unutilized
term loan at the beginning of the year
hence reporting under this clause (ix) (c) of
the orderis notapplicable.

The company has not raised any short-term
fund during the year, hence reporting
under this clause (ix) of the order is not
applicable.

The company did not have any subsidiary
or associate or joint venture during the
year and hence reporting under clause (ix)
(e) of the order is not applicable.

The company has not raised any loans
during the year on the pledge of securities
hence reporting under this clause (ix] (f) of
the orderis notapplicable.

The company is not eligible to issue any
securities (including debt instruments)
and hence reporting under this clause (x)
(a) of the orderis notapplicable.

The company is not eligible to make any
preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible
debentures (fully or partially or optionally)

and hence reporting under this clause {x)

1L
(a)

(b)

()

12.

13.

(b) ofthe orderis not applicable.

According to the information and
explanation are given to us, no material
fraud by the company or on the company by
its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.
Accordingly reporting under this clause
(xi) (a) of the order is notapplicable.
According to the information and
explanation are given to us, no report under
subsection (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filled in form ADT-
4 as prescribed under rule 13 of companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the
central government.

As represented to us by the management,
there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations are given to
us, the company is not a Nidhi company.
Accardingly, this clause (xii) of the Order is
notapplicable.

According to the information and
explanations given to us, all transactions
with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 and 188 of Companies
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14.
(a)

(b)

15.

16.
(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

17.

18.

4 W
{ M 2

Act, 2013 have been disclosed in fnancial
statement as reguired under Accounting
Standard (AS) 18, Related Party Disclosures
specified under section133 of the Act, read with
rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014
to the extent applicable to the state Controlled
entities.

In our opinion though the company is required
to have an internal audit system under section
138 of the companies act 2013, the same have
been established for the year which
commensurate with size and nature of its
business.

Due to the system in place we were able to
consider the audit report of the internal
auditors.

The Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactons with its directors ar persons
connected with them. Accordingly, provisions of
clause [xv) of the order are notapplicahle.

The Company is not reguired to be register
under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934, Accordingly, this clause [xvi) (a) of the
order is notapplicable.

The Company has not conducted any Non-
Banking Financial or Housing Finance Activities
without a valid certificate of Registration from
the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve
Bank of India Act; 1934 Accordingly, this clause
{xvi) (b) of the order is notapplicable.

The company is nota Core Investment Company
(CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
reserve bank of India Act 1934 Accordingly, this
clause [xvi) (c) of the order Is notapplicable,

According to the information and explanations
provided to us during the audit, the company
does not have any CIC, accordingly the
reéquirement of this clause (xvi) {d) of the order
is notapplicable.

The company has not incurred cash losses
during the current financial year Le. period
covered during the audit as well as in the
previous year

During the year, there has been no resignation
of the statutory auditors; accordingly, clause
(ewiii) of the order is notapplicable.

19.

20.

2L

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realization of finandal assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the board of
directors and management plans and based on
pur examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report indicating that the company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet a5 and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance
sheetdate,

We however state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the
fucts up to the date of audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of
ane year from the balince sheet date, will get
discharged by the company as and when they
fall due.

I[n our opinion and according to the information
and explanation given to us, the company has
spent $42.98 lakhs on CSR activity during the
financial year 2023-24.

According to the information & explanation
given to us and on the basis of branch auditors
reports except information, qualifications or
adverse remarks already included in the above
clauses (1 to XX] of the order, there are no other
qualifications or adverse remarks by the
respective branch auditors in the companies
{Auditor's Report) Order [CARD) reports of the
units.

For PVREN & CO
Chartered Accountant
FERN No. : D04062N

Sd/-

CA Rahul Jindal
Partner

M. No. 522355

Place : New Delhi
Date: 21-08-2024
UDIN : 24522355BKEARU1236
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Annexure "B’

Report on Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

Reporton the Internal Financial Confrols under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Seclion 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over
financial reporting of CEMENT CORPORATION OF
INDIA LTD ("the Company™) as of March 31, 2024
in conjunction with our audit of the [inancial
statements of the Company for the year ended on
thatdate.

Management's Responsibility for Internal
Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the saleguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
recards, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note") and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an

ﬂ'}; S

“J"

audit of internal financial controls, both issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonahle
assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controis
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to
obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's
internal financial controls system over financial
reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements [or external purposes in accordance
with the generally accepted accounting principles.

A Company's internal financial control over

financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that:

1 Pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and Fairly
reflect the transactions and dispesitions of
the assets of the corporation;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary Lo
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permit preparation of financial stalements
following generally accepted accounting
principles and that receipts and
expenditures of the corporation are being
made only in accordance with following
authorization of manapement and directors
ofthe corporation, and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acguisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Fimancial
Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal
financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the company has maintained, in all
material respects, adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were
operating eflectively as of March 31, 2024, based on
the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PVEN & CO
Chartered Accountant
F.RN Mo, : 00D4062ZN

Sd/-

CA Rahul Jindal

Partner

M. No. 522355

Place : New Delhi

Date : 21-08-2024

UDIN : 24522355BKEARU1 236
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Compliance Report for Directions under section 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013 for the

year ended 31st March 2024.

ANNEXURE-1

1. Whether the Company has a system in place
to process all the accounting transactions
through IT system? If ves, the implications of
processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the integrity of the accounts along
with the financial implications, if any, may be
stated.

Yes, the Company has a system in place to
process all the accounting transactions
through IT system. We have not noticed any
accounting transactions which have been
processed outside the IT system.

2. Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver/write-off of
debts/loans/ interest ete. made by a lender to
the Company due to the Company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (in case, lender is a government
company, then this direction is also applicable
for statutory auditor of lender company].

During the year there has been no
restructuring of an existing loan or cases of
walver/write-off of debts/loans/ interest
etc. made by a lender to the Company due to

the company's inability to repay the loan.

3. Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received
/ receivable specific
Central/State Government or its agencies were
properly accounted for/utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the causes of deviation.

for schemes from

The funds received/receivable for specific
schemes from Central/State agencies were
properly accounted for/ utilized as per its
term and conditions,
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

Particulars Note No.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Funds
fa) Share Capilal oz
(b} Reserves and Surplus 03
_Hnn-[:-ml.i.lhﬁﬂm
{2} Long-Term Bormowings 04
(b} Other Long Term Lishilities 05
(c] Long-Term Provisions L
Current Liabilities
[a] Short-Term Horrowings o7
(b} Trade Payables
{i} Trade Payahles-MSME o8
(i) Trade Payables-Others o8
[c} Other Current Liahilities o9
{d} Shori-Term Provisions 10
Total
ASSETS
Koo-Current Asseis
(2] Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
(i} Property, Plant and Equipment 11A
(i} Intangibie Asseis 11B
(i} Capital Work-In-Progress 12
{iv] Intangible Assets under development 13
(b} Won-Current Investments 14
(c} Lomg-Term Loans and Advanoes 15
[} Other Non-Current Assets 16
[e) Unamortised Expenses 17
Current Asseis
[a) Current Investments 18
b} Inventories 19
[c] Trade Receivahles 20
[d) Cash and Cash Equivalents: 21
|e} Short-Term Loans and Advan 2z
1) Other Current Assots 23
Total

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Satements
The Naotes referred to ashove form an integral part of the Balanee Sheet
This is the Balance Sheet referred toin our report of even date

ForPVHRNE Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Resgistration No004062N

w..-
(CA Rahul Jindal)

Partner
Membership MoS22355
UIMN-Z4522355BKEARUL1236

Date: 21-08-2024
Place: New Delhi

CCi

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Sd /-

(Samjay Banga)

Chairman & Managing Mrector
N : 09353339

Sd/-
(Ajay Kumar Sharma)
Company Secretary

?:;;hép Kumar Chand)

Director (Finance)
DIN : 09711963

Sd/-
{Syed Sharig Hussain)
Sr. Manager [Finanoe])
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Cement Corporation of India Limiled
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(11n Lakh)
Particulars Nole Na. March 11, 2023
Revenue
Revenue from Operalings
2] Sale of Products (Incudes clinker)
(b} Dther Operating Revenues
Total from Opertions
Other Income 4
Tolal Income
Expenses
{a) Cost of Materials Consumed 25 5,940.54
{b) Change in loventories of Finished Goads, Wark -in-Progress and Stock in -
Trade 26 (h14.5H)
[} Employee Benefits Expense 27 539578
(d] Finance Custs 28 -
() Depreciation and Amartisation Expense 29 1,003.04
{f) Dther Expenses 10 3446504
Prufit f (Losx) heflore Exceptional and Extraordinary llems and Tax 135456
Exceptional Items income [ (Expense) F1AA BI7458
Prufil f [Loss) before Extrasrdinary Nems and Tax 9,529.14
Extraordinary lems Income / (Expense) 31A8 -
Prufil / (Loss) before Tax 9,529.14
Tan Expease _
Less: MAT Credit Entitlement (269.17)
Profit / {Loss} from Continuing operations m
Prufit / [Loss) from Discontinuing operations [ 708542
Tax expenze of Discontinuing operations -
Profit / (Lass) from Discontinuing operations (After Tax) 700542
Profit / (Loss) for the year 9,529.14
Earnings per Equily Share [in 1)
Diluted 2963
Significont Accounting Palicies and Notes to Financial Statcments 1o 34
The Notes referred (o above form zn integral part of the Statement of Profit & Loss
Thiz is the Statement of Profit & Loss referred to in our report of even date
For PV RNE& Ca. For and on behall of Board of Direclors
Chartered Aceountants
1AL Firm Registration No.004062N
Sd /- sdf- Sdf-
(€A Rahul Jindal) (Sanjay Banga) (Pradeep Kumar Chand)
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director (Finanoe)
Membership NoS22355 [N - DEE53339 DN - 09711963
UDIN-24522355BKEARUL1Z36
5d /- s f-
Date-21-08-2024 (Ajay Kumar Sharma) (Syed Sharig Hussain)
Place: New Delhi Company Secretary S Manager [Finanoo)
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 3150 March, 2024

[T In Lakh)

{Iul:lti.nulng Operation | I}luuutinuing [I]mn'll'inn

Particulars

A, Cash Now from Operating Activities:
Mot profit/[loss) before Tax
Adjusted for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance Cost
Interest and Other Income
Frofit an digposal of Fixed Assets
Profit un sale of Investment
Provisions no longer required written back
Prowlsion for doubtiul receivables
Unamortised Expenses written off
Exgeptipnal {Tncome]/Expense
Extraordinary (Income)/Expense

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Changes in Worldng Caplital:

Increase ¢ [Decresse] in Tradd Payaliles
Incredse f [Pecrease) in Dther Linhilities
Increase f [ Decrease ) in Provisions
Pecreass / [Increase] in Trade Recelvables
Decrease | [Increase) in Inventories
Decrease [/ [Increass) in Loans & Advances
Decrease / [Increase) o Other Asséts
Unamortised Expenses incurred

Ket cash from J/ (used in) Operating
_J'.:I:Ivl thes
B. Cash low from Investing Activities:
Puarchase of Floed Assors
Interest and Other Income
Capital work-in-progess
Receipes on sale of Fived Assots
Net cash from Investing Activities

C. Cash Now from Financing Activities:
Procesds from Long-Term Borrowings
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings
Proceeds from Short-Term Borrowings
Repmyment of Short-Term Borrowings
Funuds transterred to ather unbes
Grant recelved om Gove of Indi
laterest and Other Borrowing Cost pald
Funid transferyed between units
Net cash from financing activities

NetIncrease f (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total

BE56

W, FBREE
1,113.60
- 141,.,42
(2940,23)
(192:61)
[21‘!*!3]

£
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Cement Earporation of India Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 315t March, 2024

I Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents comprizes:
Cash .50 057 (LR .03 hB3 Loy
Cheques in hand . * = ~ - -
Halance with Banks:

= (In Larrenl Accountsy 9693 THZ.46 24.23 1048 LOZT16 B2 a4

S Rmpasl Aot 2426549 1543082 . - 24,26546 15.630.82

< Under Lien 3,504.34 3.649.23 350434 3549.23
 Total | 28767.56 2007348 2426 1051 2879182 20,083.99

2 Theabave Cash Flow Stutement has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in Aceounting Standard 3 'Cash Flow Statements'
notified by the Cemtral Government under Companies { Atcounting _‘ir.n'n.l:l.n':tﬂ Hules, 2021,

A Bank Doposits include deposits of 3 222292 [alh (Previous Year: $ 226104 lakh] whose maturity period 5 moee than 12 mbnths.

4 Additionul working capital, as and when required. is propesed to be met out of mem msh resmurces,

5 Provious vear's figures have been tegrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to confirm to the current year's clissification

ForPVRNECo, For and on behalf of Beard of Directors
Chartered Accountants

TCAI Firm Beglatration Mo 040638

Sl /- S Sd/-
(CA Rabul findal) [Sanjuy Bango) [Prateep Kumar Chand)
Partner Chairman & Managing Divector Director (Finunce)
Membership No 322355 MM 1 09353339 DIN 05711963
UDIN-24522355BKEARUI236

Sd /- Sdy-
Mate:21-08-2024 [Ajoy Kusrine Sharma) [Swved Sharig Hussaln)
Mace: New [ethi Company Secretary 5r. Manager [Finance]

AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE

We have verified the above Cash Flow Statement of Cement Corporation Of India Limited derived from
the audited annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 and found the same to be
drawn in accordance therewith.

As per our report of even date attached

ForPVRN & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration No,004062N

Sd /-
(CA Rahul Jindal)
Date:21-08-2024 Partner
Placa: New Delhi Membership No 522355
UDIN-24522355BKEARU1236
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Cement Corporation of India Limited Notes to Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2024

01

01.01

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost convention,
on accrual basis, in compliance with
applicable Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant
provision of the Companies Act, 2013
except for the following items which are
accounted for on cash basis.

(i) Liguidated damages / penalties / claims,
other t han Railway & Insurance claims,
made are accounted for on realization and
included in Miscellaneous Income.

(i) Profit / loss, if any, on surplus / slow
moving / non-moving items etc. of stores
and spares, is accounted for only in the year
of their disposal.

Operating Cycle

01.02

All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per
the Company's operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Schedule IIl of the
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature
ol operations, the Company has ascertained
its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current/non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Revenue Recognition
(i) Revenue is recognized net of returns,
discounts and rebates etc., and also

excluding Goods and Services tax.

(ii) Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, with reference to the principal

01.03

01.04

01.05

01.06

outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable.

Land & Amortisation

(i) Land given free by the State Government
is valued at nominal cost or on the basis of
incidental expenditure incurred on its
acquisition.

{ii] Land [ree hold under mining lease at
quarry and land lease hold with less than
99 years lease is amortized within a period
of ten years from the date of commercial
production of the respective unit.

Investments

(i} Long term investments are stated at
cost. Permanent decline in the value of such
investments is recognized and provided for.

(ii) Current investments are stated at lower
of cost and guoted / fair value. Unquoted
current investments are stated at cosL

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs that are attributable to
acquisition or construction or production
of qualifying assets are capitalized as part
of the costs ol such assets. A gualifying
assel is one that takes necessarily
substantial period of time to get ready for
itsintended use.

All other barrowing costs are charged to
revenue.

Fixed Assels

(i) Tangible assets are stated at acquisition
cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Acquisition cost comprises of the purchase

93 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24



sz Qualily 80 Mo Compiiomine

01.07

price and any other attributable cost to
bring the asset Lo its working condition for
its intended use.

(ii) Intangible assets are stated at
acquisition cost, net of accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, il any. Acguisition cost comprises of
the purchase price and any other
attributahle expenditure on making the
asset ready forits intended use.

Depreciation / Amortisation

(i} Depreciation is provided on assets after
they are completed and become available
for use. Depreciation on fixed assets is
calculated on straight line basis based on
the useful life of assets in accordance with
the Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013
and 95% of the cost is written off during
the expected useful life of the assets as
mentioned in (iv) below.

(ii) Depreciation on assets added during
the year is charged prorata from the date
they are capitalized and upte the date
these are discarded /sold / demolished/
destroyed.

(iii) Any individual asset whose written
down value is ¥ 5000/- or less at the
beginning of the year is fully depreciated
during the year without retaining the
residual value as it is considered
insignificanL.

(iv) Any individual asset costing upto I
5000/- purchased during the year is taken
to gross block and depreciated fully in the
same year.

(v) Leasehold Land is amortised over the
period oflease.

(wi) Intangible assets are amortised on a
straight line basis over their expected
useful life as follows: Computer software is
amortised over a period of five years.

01.08
a)

b)

0109

Inventories
Valuation

{i] Stores, spare parts and raw materials,
excepl as indicated in (ii) below, are stated
at weighted average cost. The obsolete
Junserviceable stores and spares when
determined, are treated as scrap and
valued at net realizable value.

(i)} Clinker and other semi-finished goods
are stated at lower of unit's weighted
average cost or net realizable value on the
basis of work back formula. However, in
case of nepative valuation it is stated at
zerovalue,

(iii) Finished goods at factories / projects /
in dumps or in transit to dumps are stated
at lower of units weighted average cost or
realizable value. Freight included in selling
expenses upto dump is included in value of
finished poods lying at various dumps.

(iv) The total quantity of various scrap
items as al the close of each financial year
is valued as per rates available as per latest
sale orders for respective items. However,
where no such rates are available because
of scrap having been generated for the first
time or not disposed off earlier, reserve
price fixed for disposal of such scrap items
isadopted for the purpose of valuation.

Loose Tools & Tackles Tools
and tackles are written off over a period of
three years.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure

(i) Expenditure on Prospecting and Boring
is treated as Deferred Revenue
Expenditure and charged off in three to five
years after Units go into commercial
production.

(ii} Expenditure incurred on removal of
over-burden etc. at the mines which is
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utilized for capital works like laying roads,
stockyard, crusher ramp etc. is capitalized.
The rest of the expenditure incurred on
removal of over- burden etc. is treated
initially as "‘Deferred Revenue Expenditure’
and is charged off over the period for which
the limestone exposed oul ol gquarry
development is available for exploitation.

(iii) The cost of internal partitions and
other fixtures in rented buildings are
directly charged off in the year of
installation, but if the cost is more than
rupee one lakh, the same is treated as
Deferred Revenue Expenditure and is
charged offin three to five years.

(iv) After start of commercial production of
a Unit, initdal full charge of hi-chrome
grinding media is treated as Deferred
Revenue Expenditure and written off over
a period of three years. However, make up
charges are charpged to Statement of Profit
& Loss.

(v) In case there is no unutilized
grant/subsidy for Veluntary Retirement
Scheme (VRS), then terminal benefits
which are attributable to VRS payment
equivalent to one and a half months wages
for each completed year of service or wages
for the balance period of service,
whichever is less and notice period pay are
deferred and charged off during the
remaining period of service of the
individuals or in a maximum period of 5
years, whichever is less. However, any
expenditure incurred on VRS/VSS on or
alter 01/04/2003 is recognized as an
expense when itis incurred and charged off
wholly in that yearitsell.

01.10 Prior Period / Extraordinary
Adjustments

Expenditure / Receipts relating to the
particular year, coming to notice after
closure of the Accounts ie. after the cut off
date are booked under the relevant head of

expenditure / receipl of the next year, if the
amount invelved is not more than ¥
10,000/-.In case the amount is more than ¥
10,000/-, the provisions contained in the
Accounting Standard-5 ol the Institute af
Chartered Accountants of India are applied
for determination of its accountal under
natural head of accounts of Current year /
Prior period / Extraordinary Expenditure /
Income.

01.11 Accountal of Foreign Exchange
Transaction

Foreign loan liabilities are translated at the
closing market exchange rates. Gains or
losses on settlement of transactions (a)
during project period are credited/
debited to the relevant cost of equipment
those relating to spares and service are
credited/ debited to Incidental
Expenditure During Construction (IEDC),
(b) after project has gone into commercial
production, the gains/ losses are credited/
debited to the relevant cost of equipment
but, those relating to spares and services
are charged off to Statement of Profit &
Loss. Depreciation on such adjustment to
fixed assets isadjusted prospectively.

01.12 Government Grants/Subsidies

(i) Government Grants/ Subsidies related
to specific fixed assets are deducted from
the gross value of the concerned assets in
arriving at their book value. Where the
grants related to specific fixed assets
equals the whole or virtually the whaole of
the cost of the asset, the asset is valued at
nominal value or on the basis of incidental
expenditure incurred on its acquisition/
installation.

(ii) Grants foer Voluntary Retirement
Scheme, Transport Subsidy and other
Revenue Grants are deducted from the
related expenditure.

(iii) Government Grants received under
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01.13

01.14

Central Investment Subsidy Scheme
included in Central Government Incentive
for Industries in backward areas and other
similar grants received from the State
Governments, where no repayment is
ordinarily expected in respect thereof, the
grants are treated as Capital Reserve.

(iv) Capital/ Revenue Grants/ Subsidies,
other than those specified above, are
accounted for as per Accounting Standard-
12 issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Claims ofthe Corporation

(i} Insurance claims are brought to account
on the basis of Surveyor’s Report and / or
on the basis of claims lodged where on
account payments have been received. In
case, however, where surveyor’s Report for
events of loss occurred upto 31st March is
not received before closing of the Accounts,
the disclosure to that effect is made in the
form of Notes to the Accounts.

(i) Railway claims are brought to account
onlodging ofthe claims.

Deposit Works

Inrespect of Deposit Werks in progress, the
same are lreated as Corporation’s Capital
Work-in-Progress and Incidental
Expenditure during Construction Period is
proportionately added to the Deposit
Work when the ownership is transferred
and capitalized.

01.15 StaffBenefits

(i} Provision [or gratuity under the
Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and
Company’s own Gratuity Scheme is made
in respect of all employees in service at the
end of each financial year in accordance
with the acturial valuation.

(ii}) Provision for earned leave / half

0116

01.17

pay leave etc. which is encashable on
retirement or death of an employee is
made in respect of employees in service at
the end of each financial year in
accordance with the acturial valuation.

(iii} Liability for bonus is provided as per
the provisions of Payment of Bonus Act,
1965 on Unit wise basis and not
Corporation as a whole. The liability for
bonus for the Corporate Office is provided
at a rate which is average of the rates at
which the bonus is provided for the other
Units.

Premiom on Redemption of Debentures

Premium payable on redemption of
debentures is charged to Statement of
Profil & Loss f IEDC Account in such equal
instalments as the duration of debentures
commencing from the year in which
debentures are allotted.

Prepaid Expenses

Expenditure of ¥ 10,000/ or less, in each
case, incurred in advance of the
subsequent year(s) are charged off as
expenses of the current year.

01.18 Accounling for Bad & Doubtiunl

0119

Recievables/ Loans [ Advances etc

(i) Provision is made for doubtful
Recievables / Loans and advances when
the same is considered doubtful of
recovery but chances ol recovery subsist.

(ii)] Amounts are written off, when the
efforts for recoveries have failed either due
to legal process or where it is considered
litigation will not be fruitful and recovery is
not possible.

Inter unit/ Zones / Corporate Office
transfers

(i) Finished goods transferred by the Units
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are initially valued at Despatch Plan rates
and the quantity sold is then settled by the
Zonesat the actual net realizable value.

(ii) Inter Unit/ Zones / Corporate Office
transfers of Fixed assets elc. are accounted
forat book value.

(iii) Inter Unit Transfer of clinker is
accounted for at its realizable rates (by
work back method from cement) and its
losses in transit are absorbed in cost by the
receiving Unit.

(iv) Inter Unit/ Zones/ Corporate Office
bhalances are reconciled repularly and
balance confirmations obtained.

Classification of Expenditure

(i) Expenditure incurred on Repairs &
Maintenance of fixed assets, including cost
of stores & spares, except as shown as in (ii)
below, are charged to Statement of Profit &
Loss.

(ii} Expenditure incurred on repairs and
maintenance of fixed assets including cost
of stores & spares that increase the future
henefits from the existing assets beyond its
previously assessed standard of
performance (e.g. an increase in capacity)
iscapitalized.

0121

01.22

(iii} Salaries and Wages:

Salaries and wages incurred on Repairsand
Maintenance of Plant & Machinery,
Buildings etc. are charged directly to
Salaries and Wapes Account

{iv) Other Sundry Expenses:

Expenditure on parks, plantation of trees
and purchase of tents and tarpaulins etc.
are charged off as revenue expenditure.

Indirect Expenses on Expansion
Projects/ New Projects Adjacent to the
Existing Plant

The common expenses on administration,
supervision etc. incurred by the existing
plants are not charged to the Expansion
Project/ New Projects adjacent to the
existing plants.

Allocation of Corporate Office
Expenditure

Net Revenue Expenditure / Income of the
Corporate Office is allocated to all the units
and projects under construction on
estimates based on the probable benefits
or relatable to the different Units or
projects as decided hy the management to
their best assessmentand judgment.
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

u -
R

(3 In Lakh)
Particulars . Asat
March 31, 2023
02 Share Capital
Authorised
50,00,000 (31 March 2023: 50,00,000) Equity Shares, T 50,000.00
1000/- par value per share |
40,00,000 (31 March 2023; 40,00,000) Preference Shares, 40,000.00
% 1000 /- par value per share
Total -90,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up »
45,59,749 (31 March 2023: 45,59,749) Equity Shares, % 45,597.49
1000 /- par value per sharefully paid
35,54,325 (31 March 2023: 35,54,325) Preference Shares, 35,543.25
T 1000/- par value per share fully paid
Total 81,140.74

02.1 Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of each class of shares

The Company has two classes of shares referred to as Equity Shares and Preference Shares having par value
of T 1000/- per share. Each holder of Equity Share is entitled to one vote per share. Preference Shareholder
is eligible to vote only on the resolutions directly affecting the rights attached to his Preference shares,

02.2 Reconciliation of the Number of Shares outstanding

March 31,2023

Equity Shares

Numberof  Amount®
Sisare Lalh

Balance as at the beginning of the year

Add: Number of shares issued

ST 4559745

Balance as at the end of the year

4559749 4550749

0.01% Non Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares

Share: Lakh

Balance as at the beginning of the year

3554325 3554325

Add: Number of shares issued

Balance as at the end of the year

3554325  35543.25
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02.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Corporatiom:

Government of India 45 59,749 100% 45,59,7449 1004,

0.01% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:
Government of India 35,54.325 1009 3554325 100%

02.4 Details of shareholding of promoters in the Corporation:

Shares held by promoters March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
at the end of the year.

Equity Shares:

Government of India 4559749 100% 0% 45,59,749 100% 0%
0.01% Non Cumulative

Redeemable Preference

Shares:

Government of Tndia 35.54,325 100% 0% 35,54,325 1009 0%

* No change in %age shareholding of promoters in the Corporation during financial year 2023-24
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% In Lakh)

Particulars As at
03 Reserves & Sarplus

Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and

Luss e S

Balance as at the beginning of the year [mw’fﬁl

Add: Net Profit / (Loss) for the year - 9,529.14

Balance as at the end of the year (68,484.62)
04 Long Term Borrowings

Unsecured: N _

Govt. Loans 115,090.07

Total 15,090.07

05 Other Long Term Liabilities
Trade Payable

- MSMEs 9831

- Others 3,106.67
Security & Earnest Money Received 3‘;\1513*
Advance from Customers 41.13
GST/Sales Tax payable - M
Power dues payable 1,147.55
Royalty payable 6531
Interest accrued and due on borrowings- Govt Loan 12,385.27
Other Payables '5,299.52
Total 25,411.94
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Cement Corporation of India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Particulars

(% In Lakh)

06

Long Term Provisions
Provision for Employee benefits:
- Gratuity

- Earned Leave

Provision for Capital Work in Progress

Other Provisions

Asat

07

Total

Short Term Borrowings
From Banks

1,311.77

08

Total

Trade Payables
Trade Payables- MSMEs
Trade Payables- Others

4239.75

09

Total

Other Current Liabilities
Advance from customers

Security & Earnest Money Received
GST/Sales Tax Payable

Power Dues Payvable

Dues to Employees

Royalty payable

Other Payables

392.77
1,371.19

10

Taotal

Short Term Provisions
Provision for Employee benefits:
- Gratuity
- Earned Leave
Other Provisions
Bonus
Provision for Taxation
Less: Mat Credit Entitlement

1,763.96

]

1,800.60
1,001.08
442,63
22.13
75111

Total

7,757.79

504.43
23823
324975
796
183,54
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Motes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars Asat31  Additions
‘March 2023 during the
12 Capital Work-in-Progress
Mechanical consultancy 131.37 22.79
Civil Engineering Works Zﬁﬂxﬁﬁ 12.87
Plant & Machinery including awaiting 385618  1,508.04
erection - '_ - - _
Erection Expenses of Plant & Machinery - 354.48 27361
Incidental Expenditure Pending Allocation® 138.19 -
Capital Stores 882 -
Others 160.16 b
Sub Total 6,678.80  1,817.31
Provision - 435.97 =
Total 1624283 1,817.31
* Incidental Expenditure Pending
Allocation
Employee Remuneration & Benefits
Salaries, Wages & Allowances ‘
Total T
Power ﬂjgp
Miscellaneous Expenses 033
Legal Expenses 0.40.
Security Expenses 13.2%
Depreciation 014
Tatal 13.34
Transferred 13,33
Addition during the year -
Total 0.01
13 Intangible assets under development
Software Development 1491 -
Sub Total 1491 -
Provision 210 -
Tatal 12.81 -

R

(¥ In Lakh)
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Cement Corporation of India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(XIn L;tklll

Particulars

15
a)

Long-term Loans and Advances

Capital Advances

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Do bitful

Less; Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

)

Sub Total

Contractors & Suppliers

secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

~ Asat

Sub Total

Balance with Govt. Department
Secured, Considered Good

Unseeured, Considered Goaod
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

d)

Sub Total

Insurance and Other claims
Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

)

Sub Total

Loans & Advances to Employees
Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtiul

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

Sub Total
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(% In Lakh)
N As at
March 31,2023
f) Claims Recoverable- Railways
Secured, Considered Good -
Unsecured, Considered Good 13.44
Doubtful 406.06
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful advances 406.06
Sub Total 13.44
g) Excise Duty Relief Recoverable
Secured, Considered Good o=l
Unsecured, Considered Good 27.55
Doubtful 180.21
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful advances CHO.21
Sub Total 27.55
h}) Recoverable from Employees
Secured, Considered Good 0.66
Unsecured, Considered Good ‘013
Doubtful 7.51
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful advances RS
Sub Total 0.79
i] Recoverable from Outside Parties
Secured, Considered Good =
Unsecured, Considered Good 1,123.35
Doubtful 673.94
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful advances 67394
Sub Total 1,123.35
il Shortage, Losses Pending Investigation
Secured, Considered Good -
Unsecured, Considered Good =
Doubtful 589.52
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful advances 589.52
Sub Total -
Total 1,965.50
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the vear ended March 31, 2024

(% In Lakh)
March 31, 2023

Particulars

16 Other Non-Current Assets
Lang- Term Trade Receivables;
Secured- Considered Good
Unsecured- Considered Good
Doubtiul
Less: Allowances lor doubtlul receivables
Sub Total

=

151453
| 1,514.53.

Depasits: Central Excise

Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
adwvances

Sub Total

18.00

o0z

Deposits: Others

Secured, Considered Goad

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtfil

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtiul
advances

Sub Total

Interest aecrued & due on Loans & Advances
Secured- Considered Good

Unsecured- Considered Good

Doubtiul

Less: Allowances for doubtiul receivables
Sub Total

Total

39.50

17 Unamortised Expenses
Quarry Development Expenditure
Opening for the year

198276
Additions 25

Less: Capitalised /Adjusted
Total

18 Current Investments
Non Trade [nvestments
Total

108 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24



CCi

Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{% In Lakh)
. Asat
March 31, 2023

Particulars

Inventories
19 [Asverified, valued and certified by the Management)
a)  Storesand Spares:

In stock

In transit

8090 82175

b} Workin Pragress:

In stock 4.950.94 o ———
- 4,950.94
In transit
¢]  Finished Goods: o
In stock 859.83
In transit 7796 937.79
d) Raw Materials: o
In stock 1,029.61
- 102961
In transit -
¢} Logse Tools:
Instock 124 B
- 1.24
In transit
[} Packing Materials:
In stock 158407 L
= 158,07
In transit
g) Coal —
In stock 1;553::453:.' -
i i 25966 179314
h)  Serap: Ty
In stock 316,04
- 316,04
In transit
Sub total 17,404.35
Less: Provision for Unrealisable -
inventory 35794
Total 17,046.41
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

<p

)

2

»2

(% In Lakh)

Particulars

Asat

farch 31,2023

20 Trade Receivables
a) Outstanding for a period exceeding six months
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubrful
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

181

b) Others
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful receivables

2737

Total

21 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand 1.00

Cheques in hand =

Balance with Banks:
- In Current Account 802,94
- Fixed Deposits 15;&3’5.%
- Fixed Deposits held as Margin Money against 3,649.23
Bank

Guarantee/Letter of Credit

Total ' 20,083.99

Note:

Bank Deposits include depesits of T 222292 lakh (Previous Year: T 2261.04 lakh) whose maturity period

is more than 12 months,
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(T In Lakh)
_March 31,2023

Particulars

22 Short-term Loans and Advances

a) Capital Advances
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful
Less: Allewances for bad and doubtful
advances

Sub Total

h]  Deposits: Central Excise
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtiul
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances
Sub Total

17.80

17.80

c] Deposits: Others
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtiul
Less: Allowances for bad and deubtful
advances
Sub Total

417.68

d) Contractors & Suppliers
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

Sub Total

689.19

#) Balance with Govt. Department
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtiul
Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances
Sub Total

730.14
564.91
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Cement Corporation of India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

»2

Particulars

Insurance and Other claims
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

{_i In Lakh) ]

g

Sub Total

Loans & Advances to Employees
Secured, Considered Good

Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

347.08

h)

Sub Total

Claims Recoverable- Railways
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less; Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

475

Sub Total

Excise Duty Relief Recoverable
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtiul
advances

1

Sub Total

Recoverable from Employees
Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Allowances for bad and doubtful
advances

Sub Total
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Notes to Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

(t Iq l,_..u.kh]

Asat

k] Recoverahle from Outside Parties

Secured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Geod

Douhtiul
Less: Allovwances for bad and doubtful
advandes

367.77

i

Sub Total

1) Shortage, Losses Pending Investigation

Secured, Considerad Good

Unsecured, Considered Good

Diouhttul

Less: Allowances for had and doubtful
advances

Sub Total

36777

Total

23 Other Current Assets
Interest Accrued on Term Deposits
Recoverable from oulside parties

47432
538808

Taral

586236

24 Other Income

Rent from Property

Interest on:

- Fixed deposits with banks

- Dthers

Receipts from Township
Excess Provision written back
Miscellaneous Income

Prior Pertod Income (Net) {Refer Note-31 B)

Profit an sale of discarded Assets

693129
4770
3R843
9070
695

Total

25 Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
Dpening Balance
Acquisition during the year:
Limestone Raising, Quarrying &
Transportation (41
Other Raw Materials Purchased
Less: Closing Stock
Raw Materials Consumed

e
413956
1,956.40

6,970.15

EOm T
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

(% In Lakh)
March 31,2023
Limestone Raising, Quarrying &
(1 Transpertation

Limestone Raising & Payment to Contractors 1,161.54
Emplovees Remunerotion & Henefits
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 27235
Gratuity paid 4231
Benefits to Employees 0.1z
Contribution to Provident Fund 3}.&1
Contribution to Pension Fund m
Leave Encashment 22‘.»1&
Medical Expenses 382
Provision for Gratuity i
Provision for Earned Leave ﬁ.ﬁz 3‘?‘3.?3:
Stores Consumed
Gross Amount 52236
Less: Amount included under Repairs 213?3 308.61
Power 67.08
Fuel 69.93
Rates and Taxes 21.8%
Payment to Contract Labour 340,10
Royalty and Cess 1,426.,58
Quarry Development Expenditure written off EW.RI'
Travelling Expenses 0.75
Insurance 063 —
Other Expenses 3563  2,333.50
Repairs

- Machinery 092

- Building _ e

- Others 21283 213.75
Sub Total 4,396.18
Less: Quarry Dev, Exp. 256,62
Total 4,139.56
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Particulars

26 Change in Inventories of Finished Goods,
Work-in-Progress and Stack in Trade
Seml Finished Goods

- Opening Stock —

- Closing Stock (285.57)
Finished Goods

- Dpening Stock 655.04

- Closing Stack 85983 {203,79)
Finished Goods in transit :

- Opening Stock an .
- Closing Stock 77.96 (75.24)
Serap Stock

- Opening Stock 266.06

- Closing Stock 316.04 (49.98)
Total (614.58)

27 Employee Benefits Expenses
Salary, Wages and Bonus
Gratuity Paid
Benefits to Emplovees
Leave Encashment
Contribution to Provident Fund
Contribution to Pension Fund
Medical Expenses
Frovision for Earned Leave
Provision for Gratuity
Stafl Welfare Expenses

Sub Total

Less: Employec Benefits Expenses transferred t
IEDC
Total
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Cement Corporation of India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024

Particulars

M5
o,

28

Finance Cost
Other Borrowing Cost
- Dthers

Total

29

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense
Depreciation/ Amortisation
Less: Amount charged to Prior Period

Sub Total
Less: Depreciation transferred to [EDC

Total

30

Other Expenses

Pawer

Coal

Fuel il

Rent

Hates & Taxes

Insurance

Repairs & Maintenance
- Plant & Machinery
- Buildings
- Others

Other Production Expenses
Tools & Tackles Written off
Travelling Expenses
Selling Expenses
- Freight on Cément
- Handling Charges
- Godown Charges
- Sales Promotion & Publicity
= Other Selling Expenses

Vehicle Running Expenses
Auditors' Remuneration
- For Audit Fee
- For Reimbursement of Expenses
- In Other Capacity

(% In Lakh)
March 31,
2023
1213
1,003.18
0,14
9.014.60
13,862.50
522
2356
156.78
3617 23,098.83
1,625.04
12406
351.45 210055
0482
108,09
3.097.94
3298
3492 337158
7.75
2.25 1122
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Cost Auditors” Remuneration

- For Audit Fee 095 -
- For Reimbursement of Expenses 004 099
Subscription to CRI & Others 485
Communication Expenses 17.75
Printing & Stationery 2173
Hire Charges for Data Processing _ ﬁ. ?
Legal & Professional Expenses 198.72.
Security Expenses ?i?e'ﬂ:ﬁ
Interest on deposits from Stockists /Others 89.19
Training of Workers & Supervisors -
Miscellaneous Expenses (11 39280
Payment to Contract Labour ijﬂﬁ’?
Expenses on closed project :1333
Provision for doubitful receivables & advances -
Prior period Expenses (Net) [Refer Note No.31B] =
Corporate Social Responsibiity 6.00
Censumption of Stores & Spare Parts:
- Gross Amount 2,108.53 o
- Less: Includes under Repair & I.HI.ﬂ ‘Eﬁ‘:ﬂﬂ
Maintenance
Packing Materials 1,442.97
Sub Total 34478.24
Less: Expenses transferred to IEDC AJc
Power expenses 019
Legal and Professional expenses M
Security expenses 1228
Miscellaneous expenses 0.33
Total 34,465.04
(1) Includes: _
- Commission on Sale of Assets (NOU) 11510
- loss on Discard of Assets B
- Director Sitting Fees 420
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(% In Lakh)
Year ended
Particulars 2023

31 Exceptional, Extraordinary Items and Adj

31AA Exceptional ltems
Income:
Waiver of Interest etc.
Profit on sale of Assets
Sub total
Expenses:
Loss on Sale/Discard of Assets
Sub total
Net Exceptional Items
Income/(Expenses)

452,10

31AB Extraordinary Items
Income;

Sub total
Expenses:

Sub total
Net Extraordinary Items Income/(Expens

31B  Prior Period Items
Income:
Interest
Store and spare, Materials and Others
Total
Expenses:
Repairs & Maintenance
Rates & Taxes
Interest
Depreciation & Amortisation
Store and spare, Materials and Others
Total

24194 24194
241.94

1213
BO.67

_1-*;@. -

Net Prior Period Income / (Expense) a&ﬂ
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(¥ In Lakh)
Particulars _ ﬁ““ T
‘March 31,2023
32 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (To the ext
for)
A)  Contingent Liabilities
(i]  Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts -
a)  Income Tax Demand 877
b) Sales Tax demand of Tandur & Bokajan unit etc. 553'561
¢)  Bokajan Expansion Contract L‘llfﬂ‘ﬁﬂt.ﬁﬂ
d)  Arbitration Matter 971.99
¢)  Tariff Minimum Charges in respect of Akaltara 1,151.50
f) Power wheeling charges etc. in respect of Units 315#52?‘-35
g) Others- Miscellaneous Cases 6,114.18
(i}  Other money for which company is contingently liable -
Sub Total 55,983.41
B} Commitments -
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execute 1,520:65
on capital accounts and not provided for
Sub Total 1,520.65
Total (A+B) 57,504.06

Note:

Effect for cases lying in various courts for compensation/ Promotion/claims of employees for
servicematters etc. has not been given in the Books of Accounts as the amount thereof is
unascertainable.
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars

33

Quantitative Details
Actual Production
Portland tement

- Ordinary

- Pokzolana

Clinker {A pre cement stage materia
- Own manufactured
= Purchased

Cement Despatches

4 Opening Stock
4]  Cement
il Stock st Factory
- Cement OPC
- Cement PPC
i)  Stock at Dumps
- Cement OPC
- Cement PPC
iif}  Stock in Transit
- Cement OPC
- Cement PPC
iv) Damaged Cement
- Cement OPC
= Cement PPC

Sub Total

b}  Clinker [Own manufactured)
Clinker [(Purchase)

Sub Total

5  NetSales including self consumptio
i) Cement OPC

i) Cement PPC

i)  Cement used for testing

iv] Cement shortage during transit

v]  Self Consumption OPC

vi)  Self Consumption PPC

vii) Clinker

Year ended
March 31, 2023
'-H,ﬁB.iS&.M M:m mne:
79398500 M Tonnes
- M Tonnes.
6455671 MTonnes
Quantity Value
inM.Tonnes  In 1 Lakh
606623 18875
1,045.90 4205
128515 4593
T5.00 2‘12
ﬂ!.ﬂﬂﬂg?s i -
3,351.00 2048
s mein
ﬁ?mﬁmﬁ'-: 3,674.98
50237486 .
Ssoaes Mozt
ﬁ'ﬂ'ﬁ -
6875 3*?3:1
13.10 ﬂ.&u
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ended March 31,2023
'E-lm
6 Closing Stock
a)  Cement
i) Stoclk at Factory
- Cement OPC 12,507.14 49551
- Cement PPC 5‘,331.55 316,00
i)  Stock at Dumps
- Cement OPC 663.30 3441
- Cement PPC 335:?5 13.91
lii] Stoclin Transit
- Cement OPC 948,60 4340
- Cement PPC 870,80 34.56
iv) Damaged Cement
- Cement OPC 2,51595 =
- Cement PPC 301550 -
Sub Total 29,179.69 937,79
b} Clinker {Own manufactured) 1,73,355.68 400687
Clinker [Parchase) - -
Sub Total 17335568 4,006.87
7 Others
Clinker Transferrad to /{from) other
) units s :
i)  Cement Sold as Scrap /Cement discarded 2,500.75 =
it} Clinker Sold as Scrap /Clinker discarded 300 005
Total 2,503.75 0.05
A Clinker used for Cement Grinding 7.94,963.00 129,153.24
9 Raw Materials Consumed
i}  Limestone 11,93,941.00 3.921.00
ii]  Laterite 11,072.00 65.14
iii)  Ilron Ore 21.386.00 566.82
iv)  Gypsum - ﬂ,ﬁgﬂﬂ 73416
v  Shale 17,530.00 18825
vi)  FlyAsh 59, aas.uﬂ 4&3@
vil])  Clinker {Purchase)
viil) Burnt Clay xmnﬁ 10,&9
ix] Others S‘QM 1.49
Total 591054
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Noles to Financial Statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2024

 Quantity Value
inM.Tonnes  InXLakh

10 Value of Imports Calculated on CIF Ba
i) Raw Materials

ii] Components and Spare Parts

i)  Capital Goods

Total

11 Directly Imported and indigenously
available Raw mateirals, Spare parts
consumed and the percentage of each

to the total consumption ;

Directly Imported 0849 6755

Indigenously Available 99.16% 7.981.40
100.00% 8,048.95

123 | ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24




sz Qualily 80 Mo Compiiomine

Cement Corporation of India Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

34

Notes Forming Part of Financial
Statements

34.01 The claims/ counter claims lodged by the

34.02

Corporation for ¥99,634.00 lakh (Previous
year $99,956.14 lakh) are under
arbitration/ pending in various Courts etc,,
and the outcome will be known only on
award / decree etc, Hence effects are not
piven in the Accounts.

Under section 143(3), Income Tax
Department, for the Assessment Years
2006-07 and 2007-08, assessed income of
i88,500.88 lakh and ¥8,798.64 lakh
respectively and adjusted the same with
brought forward losses. As a result, the
assessed losses of the company reduced to
197,299.52 lakh. The company had filed
appeals and Appellate Authority had
reverted back the case to Assessing Officer.
Consequently, the Assessing officer
recomputed the Total Income to ¥8,852.22
lakh due to the addition w.r.t disallowance
ol depreciation on Plant and Machinery of
Non Operating Units. Hence, the assessed
loss of the company now stands reduced by
$53.58 lakh making the cummulative
carried forward loss to ¥97,353.09 lakh.
The company has filed an appeal against
the disallowance of $53.58 lakh and the
same was disposed-off by CIT (Appeals) in
the favour of CCL. Further, during
assessment u/s 143(3) for AY. 2018-19,
Assessing Officer has made addition of
3183.14, lakh to the returned income of the
Corporation thereby raising a demand of
173.36 lakh. Agprieved with the said order
ol assessment, Corporation has fled an
Appealu/s246A.

34.03 The contract of Bokajan Expansion,

including Silchar Unit, had been awarded to

M/s Promac Engineering Industries
Limited , Bangalore (Contractor) in the

year 2010 for ¥18,208 lakh. M/s Promac
Engineering Industries Limited revoked
the arbitration clause as per work order.
CCI also lodged counter claim for
lossfdamage sulfered due to non-
execution of Bokajan Expansion work
including Silchar for $93,013.28 lakh
against the contractors claim of 312,060.00
lakh. Work Order issued to the party has
been cancelled. In Silchar Unit case the
learned arbitral tribunal has passed award
apainst CCI dated 13.12.23, CCI has
challenged award before Delhi High court,
matter is under admission stage and in
Bokajan unit case arguments are under

progress.

34.04 Title deeds for land measuring 1.06 acres

(Mandhar), 0.146 hectares [Nayagaon]),
495.75 acres (Akaltara),10.12 acres
{Bhatinda Grinding Unit) and lease deeds
for 155.83 acres (Nayapoan) and 58.81
acres (Adilabad) are yet to be executed.
MHI has given the direction for
disinvestment of Non-operating Units.

Delhi Development Authority (DDA)
allotted land measuring 20.94 acres of
lease hold land to CCI for setting up of a
Grinding Unitand Railway siding.

DDA vide their letter dated 11.04.2017, suo
maoto transferred CCl's Lease hold land
measuring 14.20 acres meant for settingup
the Grinding Unit to South Delhi Municipal
Corporation (SDMC). The cost of land of
14.20 acres is now transferred to
‘Recoverable from outside parties’ as the
same is recoverable from SDMC/DDA.
Further, MCD vide letter dated 22.04.2024
has communicated handing over 9 acres of
MCD land situated at Firozpur Kalan
(Faridabad) to CCI in lieu of 14.20 acres of
land. The action in this regard is under

progress.
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34.05

Remaining 6.74 acres of land allotted for
construction of Railway sidings for CCl was
given to Railways to construct the Railway
siding. Pending Construction of the railway
siding work, the land along with siding is
not yel handed over to CClL. Northern
railway vide letter dated 23.03.20Z3
informed that reconciliation with CCI is
under progress.

Mining lease is deemed to have bheen
granted for all the Govt. Company as per
Mineral (Mining by Govt. Co.) Rules 2015
dated 03.12.2015. Accordingly, mining
leases of CCl are deemed to have been
granted and is still valid.

34.06 The acquisition of Government lands

outside the CCI, Adilabad Township and
used as road from Pump house to National
Highway No.7 measuring 32 guntas for
which alienation orders are awaited from
Revenue Department, Provision if any for
this consideration is nol made in the
accounts.

34.07 The shares of various Companies (Face

Value of ¥37.79 lakh), held by late Shri
R.K.Dalmia and kept as security with
erstwhile Dalmia Dadri Cement Limited
against loan of $214.00 lakh taken by him,
have been taken possession of shares in
earlier years. Although these shares were
valued at ¥2.80 lakh (at realisable value)
but were considered doubtful and
accordingly provided for in earlier years.

34.08 The Office Building at Scope Complex, New

Delhi, the cost thereaof of ¥266.58 lakh
excluding Electrical Installation of ¥5.70
lakh, is being amortized provisionally by
way of depreciation, considering as a
deemed owner. However, the execution of
lease deed in favour of Corporation is

pending.

34.09 A reference was made to Board of

Industrial & Financial Reconstruction
under section 15(1) of Sick Industrial Co.
([SP) Act, 1985 vide letter No.

34.10

SEC/B4/96/513 dt. 25.04.1996. The
Company was declared sick vide Hon'ble
BIFR letter No. 501/96-BENCH IV SOL dt
08.08.1996. Hon'ble BIFR in its hearing
held on 21.03.2006 has approved the
Rehabilitation Scheme prepared by M/s
IFCI ((A) and approved by GovL of India.
The Sanctioned Scheme was circulated by
Hon'ble BIFR on 03.05.2006 which inter
alia envisaped settlement of secured and
unsecured creditors and expansion [
technological upgradation of 3 operating
plants and closure / sale of remaining 7
non-operating plants. As per sanctioned
scheme closure has been made at seven
units. MHI vide letter dated 09.02.2022
directed to sale plant and machinery, stores
elc. of these non-operating units .
Accordingly, Plant and machinery along
with other assets of Aklatara, Charkhi
Dadri, Kurkunta and Mandhar units was
sold through M/s MSTC . Sale of other
plants is under progress.

(i) Reliefs and concessions in respect of
Creditors, State Governments, Other Govi.
Departments and Agencies will bhe
considered appropriately as and when
such payments are made and such
concessions/ reliefs become certain
without any contingency attached to it or
approval for the same is received, as the
case may be.

{ii] Plan Loan from Government of India
since 1975 (interest free] amounting to
$15,090.07 lakh (Previous year:
$15,090.07 lakh) will be repaid from the
sale proceeds of seven non-operating units
as per the sanctioned scheme dated
03.05.2006 of Hon'ble BIFR. Further,
interest accrued amount of ¥12,385.27
lakh on Non Plan Loan provided by GovL of
India has been freezed with effect [rom
01.04.2011. The Company is in default in
towards repayment Lo this extent. The
interest will be paid out of sale proceeds of
Non-operating Units.
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34.11 Production at the following units has been discontinued from the dates mentioned against

each unit;
Sl.

 Unit Name

i} Mandhar

ii)| Charkhi Dadri
iii) Akaltara
iv] Nayagoan & Nayagaon Expansion N
v) Kurkunta

vi) Adilabad

vii) a Delhi Grinding Unit
vii) b Bhatinda Grinding Unit

The Draft Rehabilitation Scheme (DRS)
prepared by IFCl (OA) was approved by
Hon'ble BIFR in its hearing held on
21.03.2006 and sanctioned scheme
circulated on 0(3.05.2006, envisaged
settlement of secured and unsecured
creditors and closurefsale of above 7 non-
operating units. The market value of the
assets in respect of the above 7 units as
mentioned in the said scheme is higher
than book value of Assets. Similarly, the
market value of the Assets in respect of
units Bokajan, Rajban & Tandur are
expected to be much more than the Book
Value of the Assets. Hence, there is no
indication of any potential impairment
loss. Therefore, no provision for
impairment loss has been considered in the
Accounts.

34.15

34.16

3417

34.12 The special auditor appointed by SBI Caps,
Merchant Bankers, as per the terms of the
MOU/ Sale agreement in respect of
Yerraguntala Unit had submitted their
repart. Pending reconciliation and
confirmation with M /s India Cements Ltd,,
necessary liahilities as found accruing, on
date of the sale has already been
considered in the accounts.

34.13 During implementation of Rehabilitation
Scheme, Non-cumulative Preference Share
of ¥35,543.25 lakh was issued on
22.03.2007 for seven years, further
extension for reissue of Preference Share
has been sought from the Ministry as per
Cabinet / BIFR direction.

34.14 Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities are not

Discontinued from
06 June :L%gﬁ

14 August 1996
09 December 1996
30 June 1997
01 November 1998
‘08 Febr 1999

~ Not Commissioned |

recognized in the absence of virtual
certainty of realization of the deferred tax
assets within the allowable period under
the Income Tax Act.

For classification of liabilities into current
and non-current, the stipulations
contained in the Sanctioned Scheme have
been kept in view besides its nature.

Keeping in view the nature of business &
Geographical status of the Corporation, the
segment reporting under Accounting
Standard-17 is notapplicable.

(i) Tender for sale of Assets of Kurkunta
Unit was floated through M/s MSTC (GovL
of India Enterprise) for Sale of Plant &
Machinery along with dismantling, stores
& spares on "As is where is and clean sweep
basis". Total Sale of 5,300 Lakh to give this
effect the Net Block of Fixed Assets of
$43.80 Lakh, Stores & Spares of ¥372.24
lakh and Raw Material of ¥3.29 Lakh were
discarded and effect of Income and
Expense (Net) ¥4,880.67 Lakh shown as
exceptional ltemin Note No. 31A.

(if) Tender for sale of Assets of Mandhar
unit was floated through M /s MSTC (GovL
of India Enterprise) for Sale of Plant &
Machinery along with dismantling, stores
& spares on “As is where is and clean sweep
basis". Total Sale of 5,564 Lakh to give this
effect the Net Block of Fixed Assets of
$84.88 Lakh, Stores & Spares of $247.24
Lakh, CWIP of ¥26.70 Lakh and Raw
Material of ¥ 4.95 Lakh were discarded and
effect of Income and Expense (Net)
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$5,200.23 Lakh shown as exceptional Item
in Note No.31A.

In accordance with the provisions of
section 115]B of Income Tax Act, 1961 the
company is liable to pay tax on book profits
subject to certain adjustments as provided
therein. Book profit for the current
linancial year is calculated as per the
provisions of Section 115)B of Income Tax
Act, 1961. Consequently Book profit of
current year of ¥9,505.25 Lakh is liable to
MAT amounting ¥1,660.76 Lakh only. The
said amount is shown under Current Tax
Expenses and MAT credit entitlement as
well. MAT Credit being a Deferred Tax
Assets the amount is shown in Note No.15.

34.19 A provision of ¥7.95 Crores is provided in

books of Mandhar Unit against order of

High Court in the matter of M/s SAIL,
company has filed appeal in High Court
(Diary No. E -1766219/2024 dated
30.05.24).

34.20 As per the guidelines, 3rd Pay Revision for

IDA employees has been issued by DPE on
29.05.2017. As per the practice, the
recommendation from 'Board of Directors'
was sent to MHI for approval. The
necessary approval from DHI is received
and same has been implemented in the
current financial year.

34.21 Details of provision as per Accounting Standard-29, Refer Note 6 & 10.

In X Lakh

Particulars

Opening Balance | Adjustment/Paid

pro

Gratuity
Bonus

Capital work-in- -
5

E.L. Liability

Others incl. MAT

Addition during Closing Balance
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34.22 Detalls of interest due [ pald to Micro Small & Medium Enterprises [MSMEs)

In X Lakh

1

2| The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to supplier at the end

3| The amount of interest paid in terms of Section 16, along with

4'The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in

The principal amount remaining unpaid to supplier as atthe end
of accounting year

of accounting year

the amount ofpayment made to the supplier beyond the
appuointed day during the year

making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under the Act

92499

405.24]

491.08

391.83

unpaid at the end of
the accounting year.

Section 23 of the Act.

5| The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining

6| The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even
in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the smallenterprises for the purpose
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under

13.41| 13.41

405.24 391.83

34.23 Employee's Benefits as per Accounting
Standard 15

The Corporation has adopted Accounting
Standard 15 - Employees Benelits as per
details given below:

i) Provident Fund

The Corporation pays fixed contribution of
Provident Fund (PF) at pre-determined
rates to a separate Trust which invests Lhe
funds in permitted securities. The Trust is
required Lo pay a minimum rate of interest
on contribution to the members of the
Trust. Loss of the P.E Trust, if any, is borne
by the Corporation.

ii) Gratuity

The Corporation has a defined gratuity plan. Every
employee is entitled to get gratuity as per
provisions of the Gratuity Act. The liability for
gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial

valuation.
iii) Leave Encashment

Leave encashment is payable to the eligible
employees who have accumulated Earned Leave
(EL), Half Pay Leave (HPL) etc. The liability towards
leave encashment is recognized on the basis of
actuarial valuation.

iv) Other Defined Retirement Benefits

The Corporation has a Scheme [or settlement at
home town for employees and dependents at the
time of Superannuation. This is recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of actuarial
valuation.

The summary of various defined benefits
recognised in the statement of Profit & Loss and

Balance Sheetareas follows:
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A, Expenses recognized In Statement of Profit & Loss
In X Lakh

Dther Defined
Hetirement Senafits

| 310

5. Parthoulais Lesve Encashment

a|_|Current Service Cost
b} |interest Cost

) Mot actuarial [Gainl/loss

rocognassed in the year
d} |Expenzed rocopnised in 514
the Sratement of Profit &
Lass
B,  Amounts recognized in Balance Sheat
In % Lakh

5. Particulars

al |Present value of

obligation: as-at the end al
_ (the penad i
) | Fanded statiusfDilference

o [ Er}ﬂ?l:hih_tﬂ i
recogniszd |n Balance
Shdol

€. Chenge in present value obligation

in ¥ Lakh
Othar Defined

5l Parthculars Aetirement Benafits

al | Prasent walus of
oblgation asat the
beginning of the y=ar
by |Current Service Cout
o |Interest Cost
) |Benefis Pad
e} [Astuarial [Galn)/Law aa
. |obligation
fi | Present value of
pblpation as at the end of
Lhe yem

0. Amount {or the current period

in 't Lakh
! Other Dafined
L Particulars T Retirement Benellts
31032023
3] |Present walue of [ 1316

obiigation as at the end ol
tha year

b} |Surphus/[Deficit)
E  Actusrial Assumptions

[y |Retirement age G0ymars

il [age Withdrawal Rate
Lipto 30 pears o
From 31 ta 44 yaars I

o _|Hoove &4 years 1%

0] Discountmg rate T.21H

Iv| |Future splary increase 6.0

W] |Expected esturn on Plan (NI

Aszets
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

34,24 Ageing Schedule of Trade payables due for payment (Ref. Note No. 05 and 08 to Balance Sheet);
In ¥ Lakh

i MSME

-Current Year 1.73 - 99,48 BO4.14

-Previous Year - 15.02 82.36 490,15
ii Others

-Current Year 127.60 53.24 2.988.75 4.705.07

-Previous Year 98.31 12.95 2,991.87 447432
iii Disputed dues - MSME

-Lurrent Year - - - 30.85

-Previous Year 0.18 0.75 - 093
iv. Disputed dues - Dthers

-Current Year - 3.54 3.54

-Previous Year - - 3.54 3.54

34.25 Ageing Schedule of Trade receivables outstanding (Ref. Note No. 16 to Balance Sheet):
In ¥ Lakh

iv

Undisputed Trade receivables
-considered good

-Current Year

-Previous Year

Undisputed Trade
Reccivables-considered
doubtful
-Current Year
-Previous Year

Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered good

=Current Year

-Previous Year

Disputed Trade Receivables-
considered doubtful

-Current Year

-Previous Year
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34.26 Ageing Schedule of Trade receivables outstanding (Ref. Note No. 20 to Balance Sheet):
in ¥ Lakh

| Undisputed Trade receivables -
considered good
-Current Year 36747 1.40 2032 7.83 63.95 46097
=Previous Year 1849:23 453 1746 10,84 54.05 276,10

il  Undisputed Trade Receivables-
considered donbtful
-Current Year - - - - - -
-Previous Year - . - . . .

it  Disputed Trade Receivables-

considered good
-Current Year - B - - 47,06 47,06
-Previous Year - - - - 46,46 16.46

v Disputed Trade Heceivables-
considered doubtiul
-Current Year - kS - - = z
-Previous Year - - : - . -

3427 Title deeds of Immovible Property not held in name of the Corporation as on 31.03.2024:

557 PSEBR [Gurumanak Simee 1998 Deemed ownership
dey Thermal Power with CCl
stution lvhatingda)
Building :
(fice Building 26658 - Standing Conference No Since 1938 Deemed ownership
of Public Enterprise with GG
it Investment Land
PHOpErEY
Building
il PPE retired Land
from activie ase
and held for
dispasal
Rullding
v others

Gress carrving value of land where Hile deeds sre et to be eveculed a8 por note 3404 (PPE fotired from actlve use and held for disposal) is vet to be
asgrtain, except 10012 seres (Bhstindn Goinding Unit].

Lik)
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34.28 a. Ageing schedule of Capital-work-in progress as on 31,03,.2024:

=Current Year

Projects in progress:
i Storage Silo 612.95 E = 4.20 617.15
i Pollution control 156.22 34.30 - - 190.52

eiuipment
iii Energy efficient motor and 77.26 45.40 - - 122.66
other's

iv Hat Air Duct 22.79 - - - 22.79
v RBiometric machine - - - 0.12 0.12

Projects temporarily suspended:

i Plant capacity expansion - - - 314099  3,140.99
including
grinding,
il Plant and equipments - - - 483.51 483.51
~Previous Year
Projects in progress:
i Railway line - - - 1,B30.04  1,830.04
ii Bucket Elevator - - - 323.14 323.14
iii ‘Storage Silo - - 4.20 - 4.20
iv Pollution control 220,15 68.049 - - 38824
eguipment
v Energy elficient motor and 45,859 - - - 45.89
other's
Vi Biometric machine . - 0.1z . 0.12

Projects temporarily suspended:

i Plant capacity expansion - - - 314099 3,140,599
including
grinding.

ii Plant and equipments - - - 510.21 510.21

b. CWIP completion schedule for capital-work-in progress, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its

cost cumiared toits urii'mll ilan ason 31.03.2024;

|Project1 | |
=Current Year -1 - .
~ =Previous Year - - -
Project 2
-Current Year - = - :
-Previous Year - - - -
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

34.29 a.Ageing schedule of Intangible assets under development as on 31.03.2024:
In ¥ Lakh

Projects in progress:
i Software Development
-Current Year -
-Previous Year -
Projects temporarily suspended:
-Current Year - - - =

0.87 11.94 12,81
12.61 0.20 12.81

-Previous Year - - - -

b. Completion schedule for Intangible assets under development, whose completion is overdue or has
exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, as on 31.03.2024:

Project 1
~Current Year - - -
-Previous Year - - -

Project 2
-Current Year - - - -
-Previous Year - . - -

3430  Details of Benami Property Held viz, Year of acquisition, Amount, beneficiaries, Proceedings If any :
il

34.31 Timely filing of statutory returns in case of borrowings from banks or Financial Institutions on the
basis ol security of current assets. : Not Applicable

3432  Details of declaration of wilful defaults of corporation by any bank or Financial Insititutions, : Not
Applicable Other Schedule I formats which are not applicable or Nil have not been disclosed
seperately.

3433 Details and reasons of charges or satisfaction yel to be registered with registrar of
companies beyond statutory period.

In % Lakh
SYNDICATE BANK 460.00 Vacation of charge pending.
il STATE BANK OF HYDERARAD 1.230.00 Vaeation of charge pending.
ki :’;]FJ;NSURANEE CRRERRAION OF 300.00 Vacation of charge pending.
iv gﬁrﬁgﬂ“ INSUBANLE CORRORATION 300.00 Vacation of charge pending.
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Cement Corporation of India Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

34.35 Balances shown under advances, trade payables and trade receivables, deposits to and from parties
and other liabilities etc. are subject to confirmation/ reconciliation. These include certain old balances
pending scrutiny for adjustment. Necessary effect would be given on completion of the same.

34.36 The Expenditure incurred towards various activities under Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) as
per Companies Act, 2013 is given below. The total amount spent is shown in Note No. 30.

In T Lakh

i} Average net profit of Corporation for last three years 2230.06 80.51

ii)  Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the above under Companies Act, 44.60 1.61
2013)

iif) Total amount spent during the year as given below 4298 6.00

iv)  Amount unspent (ii - iii) 1.62 -

Details of the amount spent during the year

In X Lakh

a) Construction/Acquisition of

any assets

b)  On purposes other than above
(i) Promoting Education 8.43 .00 - - B.A43 6.00
(i) Promoting Health Care 3455 - - - 34.55 -
Total 4298 .00 = = 42.98 6.00

34.37 Inacecordance with Accounting Standard- 18 'Related Party Disclosures’ of the Companies [Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006, it is certified by the Management that no Related Party Transactions have been made
during the yvear. The details of remuneration paid to Key Managerial Personnel are given below:

in X Lakh

i) Sh. Sanjay Banga' Chairman & Managing Director 51.71 44,40
ii)  Sh. Pradeep Kumar Chand® Director (Fin) 44.32 22.08
iii) Sh. Ajay Kumar Sharma Company Secretary 28.12 21.04

*Appointed as C&MD with effect from 12th October, 2021.
“*Appointed as Director (Fin) with effect from 25th August 2022,

In addition, C&MD and full time Directors are also allowed to use company vehicle for non-duty journey
upto 1,000 kms. per month on payment of T2,000/- per month.
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34.38 The Earnings Per Share (EPS) of the company as per Accounting Standard-20 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India is as under:

k18 Particulars

a] Net Profit after tax for the year (3 Lakh)

b) Less: Extraordinary/Exceptional items (3 Lakh)

c)  Less: Dividend on Non- Cumulative Preference Shares (T Lakh)
d) Met Profit after tax attributable to Equity Share Holders (¥ Lakh)
e] Number of Equity Shares outstanding during the vear

f)  Face Value of Equity Share (1)

g) Basic Earnings Per Share ()

h) Diluted Earnings Per Share (3)

45,59,749
1,000.00
29.63

34.39 Figures of the previous year have been split up and regrouped, wherever necessary, so as to
correspond to the current year figures,

ForPVRN & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
ICAL Firm Registration No.004062N

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
(CA Rahul Jindal) [Sanjay Banga) (Fradeep Kumar Chand)
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Director (Finance)
Membership No.522355 DiN: 09353339 DIN: 09711963
UNDIN-

Sd/- Sd/-

Ef;tf::]::f‘gﬂi? (Ajay Kumar Sharma) {Syed Sharig Hussain)
UDIN-24522355BKEARU1236 Company Secretary Sr. Manager (Finance)
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION H36) (h) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF CEMENT CORPORATION OF INDIA LIMITED FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2024

Phe preparation: ol fnancial starements of Cement Corporation of India Limied in
accordanee with the financinl reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act. 2013
(Aet) is the résponsihility of the management of the Company, Ihe statatory auditor appointed by
the Camperoller ind Auditor General of Indin under Section 139(5) of the Acr is responsible for
expressing apinion on the finoncial stements inder section 143 of the Act based on independent
audit in accordunce with the standards an auditing preseribed under section 143 10) of the A,

This is stited to have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 21 August 2024,

Loon behall of the Comptroller and Audilor General of India. have conducted o
supplementary audit of the financial statements of Cement Corporation of India Limited for the
vear ended 31 March 2024 under section 143(6) (1) of the Act. This supplementary audit hus been
carried out independently withoul aceess 1o the working papers of the statutory auditors und s
limited primarily to inguirics of the Stuutory Auditors and company personnél and o selective

examination ol some of the aicaunting records

U the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come 1o my knowledge
which would give rise lo any comment upon or supplement to the statutory suditors’ report under

section [43(6Hh) of the Act,

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor Generul of Indin

s, Ahlhdln;Fgulk]

Director General 6T Audit
(Industry & Corporate Affairs)
New Delhi

Phace: New Delhi

Date: o 2 NCT 2024
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Our Employees - Our Greatest Asset

In a competitive markel, retaining talent is crucial.
However, over the past glorious 59 years of Cement
Corporation of India's existence, the company has
consistently focused on the development and
management of employees, its greatest asset in
order to create a productive and engaged
workforce and environment.

CC1 has a skillful and motivated workforce, who are
the driving force behind CCI's journey over the
years. Despite significant decrease in manpower
strength as compared Lo previous years, there is no
change in the company's prolitability. CCI has been
incessantly revalidating and innovating HR policies
to adapt to employees value proposition and to
create conducive environment for employees.
Strong company culture and value system have
shaped both employees and overall business of the
corporation. They form the heartbeat of the
organisation, dri'.ring performance, fostering
innovation and propelling unparalled
achievement. Employees are stakeholders for their
work and every effort put by them adds to the
company's profitability.

Employees are the brand ambassadors, the [ace of
the company. CCI believes that valuing and

and cross functional learning among employees, by
fostering culture of Knowledge Sharing Sessions.
CCl organises Knowledge Sharing Session virtually,
to increase the inter unit and inter departmental
rapport as well as productivity and every function
in an organisation commision better research,
which is personally monitored by the Chairman &
Managing Director so as to ensure skill transfer
across levels. Frequent plant visit by the Chairman
& Managing Director to interact with employees
has developed employees' momentum, thus
stimulating engagement. CCI has ensured that in
order to create an engaged workforce, major
drivers of employee engagement such as Talent
Management, Communication strategy, Workforce
Planning, Employee Recognition and Participative
Managementarein place.

The corporation has achieved its present level of
excellence through human resource which can be
assessed through the existing profile of manpower
strength profession wise around 69% of the total
employee strength representing technically and
professionally qualified degree/diploma holders
and management graduates. Rapid productivity
can be very well perceived by the potentially
around 58% of the total employee strength falls in

investing in people leads to success, positive the age group of 25~50 years.
benefits, increased productivity and loyalty. The
corporation has nurtured creativity, innovation
Employee Engagement
Increased Improved

Profitability

A

Productivity
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505

Professional Profile

Particulars

PHDs

Post Graduate Engineers

Graduate Engineers

MBAs

Professional Diploma Holderd

Post Graduate

CA/ICWA/SAS/ACS

Engineer Diploma Holders

Graduate

ITI Certificate Holders

Sialele|N|o|wn s win = I:E
L]

Others

Total

110
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Manal Limestone Mines of Cement Corporation of India Ltd, Rajban
Cement Factory won two prestigious prizes in Mines Safety
week-2024 under the aegis of Directorate General of Mines Safety.
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Shri V. L Kantha Rao, Hon'ble Secretary, Ministry of Mines,
New Delhi visited CCI Karankote Limestone Mines in Tandur Cement Factory
on 21st December,2023 and was greeted by Sh. Sanjay Banga, CMD CCL
Various issues on Mining Lease area, Mining Reserves, Production & life
of the mine were discussed:
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Salient features of our Units

MANDHAR (Distt. Raipur, Chhattisgarh)

RS
‘Qa,_f :

This is the first unit of the Corparation, which went into production in July, 1970 adopting the wel process and this was
expandedto produce slag cement from November, 1978, The slag requirement is drawn from Bhillai Steel Plant

PARTICULARS

Installed capacity (in lakh tonnes)

Froduction (in takh tonnes)

Value of Production(fin lalhs)

Profit/{Loss) (¥in lakhs)

As per MHI directions, The Plant & Machinery and other Assets was sold during F.Y, 2023-24

KURKUNTA [Distt Gulbarga, Karnataka)

This is the second wet process unit which went into production from Octoher, 1972,

PARTICULARS

Installed eapacity [in lakh tonnes)

Production (in lakh tonnes)

Value of Production (¥in lakhs)

Profit/{Loss) (§in lakhs)

202223 | zo21-22
‘380 380
(31 (103)
2022-23 | 202122
198" 1.08
(157) (109)

As per MHi directions, The Plant & Machinery and other Asseis was sold during FY, 2023-24

BOKAJAN (Distt. Karbi Anglong, Assam)

This unit 15 located in difficult ares inKarbi Anglong Distt. of Assam, setup more froma socio economic point of view of
serving the neighboring areas with cement, rather thanonly fromnormal economic consideration. Limestone for this unit
is transported, by ropeway 18 Kmslong, passing through difficult terrain, The unit went into production from st Aprl,

1977.

PARTICULARS

Installed capacity (in lakh tonnes)

Production (in lakh tonnes)

Value of Production @in lakhs)

Profit/[Loss) [T in kakhs)

2022-23 2021-22
1.98 1.98
1.30 1.08
B6T1 7234

431 (184)

RAJBAN (Distt. Sirmur, Himachal Pradesh)

This 15 yet another unit located ina hilly and difficult area. Inaddition to noemal communication belng difficulr, the unitis
serviced for both inward movement of materials and outward movement of finished products by road transport for a
considerable lead, as the Unit does nothave nearby rail head, The entire production of this factory has tobe distributed by
road, From the guarry situated in the hills, Hmestone is transported by a ropeway of 9 kms. T'he unit is In commercial

production romApril, 1580,

PARTICULARS

Installed capacity (in lakh tonnes)

Production {in lakh tonnes)

Value of Production §in lakhs)

Profit/(Loss) (¥ in lakhs)

2022-23 2021-22
2.48 248
157 1.30
9145 7485
605 (262)

NAYAGAON [Distt. Mandsaur, Madhya Pradesh)

This unit with an annual installed capacity of 4 lakh tonnes went into commerclal praduction from Lst March, 1982,

PARTICULARS

202223

|z021-22

Installed eapacity [in lakh tonnes)

00

4,00
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Value of Production (#in lakhs]
Profit/(Loss) [¥in lakhs) (49) (195) (163)
Expansion project by another 10 lakh tonnes was undertaken on the concept of split location e clinkerisation at

Mayagaon and grinding of clinker at Dethi and Bhatinda, Clinkerisation plantat Mayagaon and grinding unicat Delhi have gone
into commercial production from 1,5.90.

MAYAGAON Expn. Including DGU & BGU

2022-23 2021-22
installed capacity (in lakh tonnes) ' 500 5.00
Production (in takh tonnes)
Value of Production [fin lakhs)
Profit/{Loss) ( ¥ in lakhs) (89) (81)

AKALTARA (Diste. Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh)

This unit went into commercial production from EstApril, 1981,

PARTICULARS 2022-23 |z021-22
Installed capacity [in lakh tonnes) 400 00
Production [in lakh tonnes)
Value of Production fin lakhs) :
Profit/{Loss) [Fin lakhs) 4896 _ 125

As per MHI directions, The Plant & Machinery and other Assets was sold during F.Y. 2022-23
CHARKHI DADPRI [(Distt. Bhiwanl, Harvana)
This was a sick unit takenover by the Government of India and vested with CCUin June, 1981, After rehabilitation within a

short perfod, cement grinding was started by September, 1981 and clinker production started subsequently, Out of two
streams, only onewas capable ol rehabllitation.

PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22
Installed capacity (in lakh tonnes) 174 0 174
Production [in lakh tonnes)

WValue of Production Fin lakhs)

Profit/{Less) (7 in lakhs) 3017 (102)

As per MHI directions, The Plant & Machinery and other Assets was sold during F.Y. 2022-23

ADILABAD (Distt. Adilabad, Telangana)
This unit went into commercial Production from April, 1984

PARTICULARS
2022-23 2021-22
installed capacity (in lakh tonnes) 400 +.00
Production [indakh tonnes)
Value of Production (fin lakhs)
Prafit/{Loss] [ ¥ in lakhs) (256) (245)
TANDUR (Distt. K. V. Ranga Reddy, Telengana)
This unit went into commercial production from 15t July, 1987
PARTICULARS 2022-23 2021-22
Installed capacity (in lakh tonnes) 10,00 10.00
Production (in lakh tonnes) 5.82 .34
Value of Production fin lakhs) 26925 29343
Profit/{Loss) {¥in lakhs) 1408 5144
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Widion & Middion

_ ToE Sustainabl
WISIHL  ° cement Company

Committed to Contribute to
) the Economy

To enhance value for the
) stakeholders

To augment the Wealth
Creation for the Company

Inspiring Employee in
-) delivering an Improved
e a% Product

o ','-‘I . . - i 4%
% Y "' Aim for diversification in
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” ;ﬁﬁm‘é | Registered & Corporate Office

Cement Corporation of India Ltd.
c c i CORE-5, Scope Complex, 7,

CIN No. : U74889DL1965G0OI1004322
Ladhi Road, New Delhi-110003
e-Mail: mktg _co@cciltd.in

Cement Manufacturing Units

Bokajan Cement Plant Rajban Cement Plant Tandur Cement Plant
Disstt~ Karbi Anglong Distt. = Sirmaur Distt- K.V. Rangareddy
State- Assam State- Himachal Pradesh  State- Telangana

e-mail: mktg_bko@cciltd.in  e-mail: mktg_rjo@cciltd.in e-mail: mktg_tdo@cciltd.in

CClI MARKETING OFFICES

DEHRADUN | HYDERABAD | SHOLAPUR | BIJAPUR | GULBARGA | HUBLI




